
YUBA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION
1114 Yuba Street 

Marysville, CA 95901 

Trustee Area 1 

Trustee Area 2 

Trustee Area 3 

Trustee Area 4 

Katharine Rosser  
John Nicoletti, President
Marjorie Renicker 
Desiree   Hastey 
Tracy Bishop, Vice President Trustee Area 5 

Agenda
July 10, 2024     

Rob Gregor
Yuba County Superintendent of Schools



YUBA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION  
REGULAR MEETING  

Wednesday, July 10, 2024 – 4:30p.m. 
Yuba County One Stop, Beckwourth Room 
1114 Yuba Street, Marysville, CA 95901  

 
PUBLIC COMMENTS: Persons wishing to address the Board (Agenda Items and/or Non-Agenda Items) are 
requested to fill out a “Request to Speak” card before the start of the meeting and give it to the Secretary, Board 
President, or Superintendent. Individual speakers will be allowed five minutes to address the Board - fifteen 
minutes total time for public input on each item. 
 

AGENDA  
  
1. CALL TO ORDER, ATTENDANCE, AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  

 
2. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

 
This item is being placed on the agenda to allow any member of the public to speak on agenda items and 
non-agenda items or to share information with the Board.  
  
The California Government Code, Section 54595.2(a)(2) states, “No action or discussion shall be undertaken on 
any item not appearing on the posted agenda, except that members of a legislative body or its staff may briefly 
respond to statements made or questions posed by persons exercising their public testimony rights under Section 
54954.3.”  

 
3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA           ACTION ITEM 

 
4. CONSENT AGENDA              ACTION ITEM  
  

4.1 APPROVAL OF JUNE 20, 2024, BOARD MINUTES – Pages 1-6 
4.2 ACCEPTANCE OF $500 DONATION FROM KINGSLEY BOGARD LLP – Page 7 

 
The above items are self-explanatory. All items on the Consent Agenda are considered a routine item or 
one that has been previously discussed. Any Board Member may request that an item be pulled for 
further discussion.  
        

5. SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT  
 

5.1 PRESENTATION OF JOINT PROCLAMATION   INFORMATION ITEM 
 FOR KEVIN WATTS – Page 8 
 Cynthia Soares 
 
Present Joint Proclamation with Superintendent in honor of Kevin Watt’s years of service to the Yuba 
County Office of Education. 
 
5.2 QUARTERLY REPORT ON WILLIAMS UNIFORM  INFORMATION ITEM 
 COMPLAINTS – Page 9 
 Rob Gregor 
 



Superintendent Gregor will share the Quarterly Report on Williams Uniform Complaints for  
April 1, 2024 – June 30, 2024, 4th Quarter, pursuant to Education Code §35186. 

 
5.3 CONFLICT OF INTEREST LOCAL AGENCY BIENNIAL ACTION ITEM 
 REPORT – Pages 10-18 
 Rob Gregor 
 
The Political Reform Act requires every local government agency to review its conflict of interest code 
biennially. No later than October 1, 2024, of each even-numbered year, each agency must submit to the 
Yuba County Board of Supervisors a notice indicating whether or not an amendment is necessary. 
 
Recommend submission with: No amendment is required. 
 
5.4 THIS ITEM PROVIDES AN OPPORTUNITY FOR THE    INFORMATION ITEM  

SUPERINTENDENT/DIRECTORS/BOARD MEMBERS  
TO SHARE VARIOUS ITEMS OF INTEREST 

 
6. HUMAN RESOURCES 

 
6.1 SET SUPERINTENDENT SALARY/BENEFITS – Page 19  ACTION ITEM 
 Superintendent’s Salary Committee 
 
The Salary Committee will set the Superintendent’s Salary and Benefits for the 2024/2025 Fiscal Year. 
 
Recommend the Board approve the Superintendent’s Salary and Benefits for 2024/2025. 
 

7. EDUCATIONAL SERVICES  
 

7.1 BOARD DECISION ON THE YUBA COUNTY CAREER ACTION ITEM 
  PREPARATORY CHARTER SCHOOL (YCCPCS) REQUEST  

FOR MATERIAL REVISION – Pages 20-91 
Bobbi Abold 
 

YCCPCS has submitted a request for material revision of its charter to update procedures and the 
governance structure of YCCPCS. These changes are defined as “material”. Education Code 47607 
requires the process for approval of material revisions to follow that for initial charter petitions in 
Education Code 47605. The Yuba County Board of Education will make a determination and either 
approve or deny the Yuba County Career Preparatory Charter School request for material revision. 

 
7.2 YUBA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION    ACTION ITEM 
  PROP 28 ARTS AND MUSIC ANNUAL REPORT FOR 2023-2024 

THOMAS E. MATHEWS & HARRY P.B. CARDEN – Page 92 
Bobbi Abold 

 
Yuba County Office of Education must submit a board approved Prop 28 Arts and Music Annual 
Report to the California Department of Education. 
 
 
 



7.3 APPROVAL OF YUBA COUNTY OFFICE OF    ACTION ITEM 
  EDUCATION SYSTEM OF SUPPORT PLAN – Pages 93-101 
  Bobbi Abold 
 
 Education Code 52066 specifies that beginning with the 2018-2019 fiscal year, the County 
Superintendent of Schools shall prepare and present a summary of how the County Superintendent of 
Schools will support school districts in implementing the statutory and regulatory requirements of the 
Local Control Accountability Plans (LCAP). 
 
Recommend the Board adopt the 2024-2025 Annual Plan for Local Control Accountability Plan 
(LCAP) Support. 

 
7.4 EDUCATIONAL SERVICES PROGRAM UPDATE  INFORMATION ITEM 
  Bobbi Abold 
 
 Deputy Superintendent Bobbi Abold will share an update of the Educational Services Programs that are 
currently being offered to schools, districts, and the community in Yuba County. 

 
8. CLOSED SESSION 

 
8.1 CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL    INFORMATION/ 

EXISTING LITIGATION (Gov’t. Code section 54956.9(d)(1).)  ACTION ITEM 
Name of Case: Y.T. v. Marysville Joint Unified School District, et. al.  

 
9. ADVANCED PLANNING 

 
9.1 NEXT REGULAR BOARD MEETING          INFORMATION/                    
 AUGUST 14, 2024 – 4:30P.M.     ACTION ITEM 

LOCATION: YUBA COUNTY ONE STOP, 
BECKWOURTH ROOM, 1114 YUBA STREET,  
MARYSVILLE, CA 95901 

 
10. ADJOURN          ACTION ITEM 



YUBA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

Wednesday, June 20, 2024 – 4:30pm  
Yuba County One Stop, Beckwourth Room, 1114 Yuba Street, Marysville, CA 95901 

1 | P age 

TOPIC DISCUSSION ACTION TAKEN 

1. CALL TO ORDER President John Nicoletti called a regular 
meeting of the Yuba County Board of 
Education to order at 4:30 pm on June 20, 2024, 
at the Yuba County One Stop, Beckwourth 
Room, 1114 Yuba Street, Marysville, CA. 

CALLED TO ORDER: 
4:30 pm 

ATTENDANCE, PLEDGE OF 
ALLEGIANCE 

Present were Katharine Rosser, Marjorie 
Renicker, and Tracy Bishop. 

Desiree Hastey and John Nicoletti are not in 
attendance. 

 Bobbi Abold led the recital of the Pledge of 
Allegiance.        

QUORUM PRESENT 

2. PUBLIC COMMENTS There were no comments from the public. 

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA Vice President Bishop directed Board members 
to the June 20, 2024, Agenda for their review 
and approval.  

Upon a motion by Vice President Bishop, duly 
seconded by Trustee Renicker, the Board 
unanimously approved the June 20, 2024, 
Agenda as presented. 

MOTION: To approve 
the June 20, 2024, Agenda 
as presented 
MOTION: Marjorie 
Renicker 
SECOND: Katharine 
Rosser  
ROLL CALL VOTE: 
Katharine Rosser - Aye 
Marjorie Renicker – Aye 
Tracy Bishop – Aye 
Desiree Hastey – Absent 
John Nicoletti - Absent 
MOTION APPROVED 
(3/0) 

4. CONSENT AGENDA Vice President Bishop directed board members to 
the June 12, 2024, Consent Agenda for their 
review and approval.  

4.1 Approval of June 12, 2024, Board  
Minutes 

MOTION: To approve 
the June 12, 2024, Consent 
Agenda as presented 
MOTION: Katharine 
Rosser 

1



 

2 | P age  
  

Upon a motion by Trustee Renicker, duly 
seconded by Trustee Rosser, the Board 
unanimously approved the June 12, 2024, 
Consent Agenda as presented. 
 

SECOND: Marjorie 
Renicker 
ROLL CALL VOTE: 
Katharine Rosser - Aye 
Marjorie Renicker – Aye 
Tracy Bishop – Aye 
Desiree Hastey – Absent 
John Nicoletti - Absent 
MOTION APPROVED 
(3/0) 

5. SUPERINTENDENT’S   
    REPORT 

5.1 This Item Provides an Opportunity for 
the Superintendent/Directors/Board 
Members to Share Various Items of 
Interest 
 
No reports or updates were shared. 

 
 
 
 
 

6. HUMAN RESOURCES 6.0 Declaration of Need for Fully Qualified   
      Educators 

 
Mary Hang, Executive Director of Human 
Resources presented the Commission of Teacher 
Credentialing requires a declaration if we 
anticipate hiring teachers on an emergency 
credential.  

 

7. EDUCATIONAL SERVICES 7.1 Yuba County Office of Education Staff  
      Report for Yuba Environmental  
      Science (YES) 
 

Sima Ghandi, Director of Curriculum and 
Instruction reviewed the YCOE Staff Report 
for YES Charter Academy for the 2023-2024 
school year. 
 

      7.2 Approval of the Local Control 
      Accountability Plan (LCAP) of the  
      Yuba County Office of Education for  
       2024-2025 

 
Deputy Superintendent Bobbi Abold presented 
the 2024-2025 YCOE LCAP for approval. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
MOTION: To approve 
the Local Control 
Accountability Plan 
(LCAP) of the Yuba 
County Office of 
Education for 2024-2025 
MOTION: Marjorie 
Renicker 
SECOND: Katharine 
Rosser  
ROLL CALL VOTE: 

2



 

3 | P age  
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
      
      7.3 Yuba County Office of Education    

       Local Indicators 
 

Deputy Superintendent Bobbi Abold presented 
the Local Indicators for approval. California's 
accountability system is based on a multiple 
measures system that assesses how local 
educational agencies (LEAs) and schools are 
meeting the needs of their students. Performance 
on these measures is reported through the 
California School Dashboard. 
 
Trustee Rosser recommends a performance 
indicator update when Deputy Abold reports on 
this item next year that shares the growth from 
year to year. 
 
 
 

7.4 Yuba County Office of Education  
      Consolidated Application for  
      2024-2025   

 
Deputy Superintendent Bobbi Abold presented 
the Consolidated Application for 2024-2025 for 
approval. The Consolidated Application 
(ConApp) is used by the California Department 
of Education (CDE) to distribute categorical 
funds from various federal programs to county 
offices, school districts, and direct-funded charter 
schools throughout California.  
 
 
 
 

Katharine Rosser - Aye 
Marjorie Renicker – Aye 
Tracy Bishop – Aye 
Desiree Hastey – Absent 
John Nicoletti - Absent 
MOTION APPROVED 
(3/0) 
 
MOTION: To approve 
the Yuba County Office of 
Education Local Indicators 
MOTION: Katharine 
Rosser 
SECOND: Marjorie 
Renicker 
ROLL CALL VOTE: 
Katharine Rosser - Aye 
Marjorie Renicker – Aye 
Tracy Bishop – Aye 
Desiree Hastey – Absent 
John Nicoletti - Absent 
MOTION APPROVED 
(3/0) 
 
 
 
 
MOTION: To approve 
the Yuba County Office of 
Education Consolidated 
Application for 2024-2025 
MOTION: Marjorie 
Renicker 
SECOND: Katharine 
Rosser  
ROLL CALL VOTE: 
Katharine Rosser - Aye 
Marjorie Renicker – Aye 
Tracy Bishop – Aye 
Desiree Hastey – Absent 
John Nicoletti - Absent 
MOTION APPROVED 
(3/0) 
 

3



 

4 | P age  
  

     7.5 Adoption of AB 922 – Yuba County  
      Plan for Expelled Youth 

  
Deputy Superintendent Bobbi Abold presented 
the Adoption of AB 922- Yuba County Plan for 
Expelled Youth for approval. The 
California Education Code (EC) Section 48926 
requires county superintendents, in conjunction 
with superintendents of the school districts 
within the county, to develop a plan for providing 
educational services to all expelled pupils in that 
county for approval. 
 
Trustee Bishop requested comparable changes in 
next year’s report to the board. 
 
Trustee Rosser would like to see a one-page 
overview from the prior three years in the next 
update. 
 
 
 

7.6 Yuba County Office of Education Prop  
       28 Arts and Music Plan for 2024-2025  
      Thomas E. Mathews & Harry P.B.  
      Carden  

 
Deputy Superintendent Bobbi Abold shared with 
the board that the Yuba County Office of 
Education will provide a music program at 
Thomas E. Mathews and Harry P.B. Carden 
Court School based on student interest as 
determined by student focus group feedback. The 
music program includes music theory, vocal 
music, music composition and ensembles, and 
music appreciation. 

MOTION: To approve 
the Adoption of AB 922 
Yuba County Plan for 
Expelled Youth 
MOTION: Marjorie 
Renicker 
SECOND: Katharine 
Rosser  
ROLL CALL VOTE: 
Katharine Rosser - Aye 
Marjorie Renicker – Aye 
Tracy Bishop – Aye 
Desiree Hastey – Absent 
John Nicoletti - Absent 
MOTION APPROVED 
(3/0) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

8. FISCAL SERVICES 8.1 Adoption of the Proposed  
Budget of the Yuba County Office of 
Education for 2024-2025 
 

Chief Business Official Aaron Thornsberry 
presented for approval the final adoption of the 

MOTION: To approve 
the Adoption of the 
Proposed Budget of the 
Yuba County Office of 
Education for 2024-2025 
MOTION: Katharine 
Rosser 

4



 

5 | P age  
  

Yuba County Office of Education Budget for 
2024-2025. 
 
      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 8.2 Allocate Forest Reserve Funds  
 
Chief Business Official Aaron Thornsberry 
presented the U.S. Forest Reserve allocation, 
Federal Year 2023, and monies received in FY 
23/24 for approval.   
 
 

SECOND: Marjorie 
Renicker 
ROLL CALL VOTE: 
Katharine Rosser - Aye 
Marjorie Renicker – Aye 
Tracy Bishop – Aye 
Desiree Hastey – Absent 
John Nicoletti - Absent 
MOTION APPROVED 
(3/0) 
 
MOTION: To approve 
the Adoption of the 
Proposed Budget of the 
Yuba County Office of 
Education for 2024-2025 
MOTION: Marjorie 
Renicker 
SECOND: Katharine 
Rosser 
ROLL CALL VOTE: 
Katharine Rosser - Aye 
Marjorie Renicker – Aye 
Tracy Bishop – Aye 
Desiree Hastey – Absent 
John Nicoletti - Absent 
MOTION APPROVED 
(3/0) 

9. ADVANCED PLANNING 9.1 Next Regular Board Meeting  
July 10, 2024 – 4:30 pm 
Location: Yuba County One Stop, 
Beckwourth Room, 1114 Yuba Street, 
Marysville, CA 95901 

 
 
 
 
 

9. ADJOURNMENT There being no further business for discussion, 
the meeting adjourned at 5:19. 
 
Upon a motion by Trustee Rosser, duly seconded 
by Trustee Renicker, the Board unanimously 
adjourned the June 20, 2024, Yuba County Board 
of Education meeting. 
 

MOTION: To adjourn   
MOTION: Katharine 
Rosser  
SECOND: Marjorie 
Renicker 
ROLL CALL VOTE: 
Katharine Rosser - Aye 
Marjorie Renicker – Aye 
Tracy Bishop – Aye 
Desiree Hastey – Absent 

5



 

6 | P age  
  

 
 Respectfully submitted,                          Recorded by:   
                               Amy Nore 

           
 
Rob Gregor           
Yuba County Superintendent of Schools 

John Nicoletti - Absent 
MEETING 
ADJOURNED: 5:17 pm  
(3/0) 

6



7



JOINT PROCLAMATION BY 
YUBA COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS 

AND 
YUBA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 

HONORING KEVIN WATTS 
FOR DEDICATED SERVICE  

 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT PROCLAIMED, the Yuba County Superintendent of Schools and the Yuba 
County Board of Education does hereby issue this proclamation with gratitude and indebtedness to Kevin 
Watts on this tenth day of July, two thousand and twenty four, and presented to him as a symbol of honor,  
admiration, and respect. 

 
 
 

       
Rob Gregor, Superintendent 

Yuba County Office of Education 

 
 
 

       
John Nicoletti, President 

Yuba County Board of Education 

  
  

WHEREAS, Kevin Watts has served with distinction for twenty six years of his life, beginning in 1998,    
to educate and inspire youth in the Yuba County Office of Education (YCOE) programs of Harry P.B. Carden 
Court School, Thomas E. Matthews Community School and eventually came to the Yuba County Career         
Preparatory Charter School (YCCPCS) in 2013, and 

WHEREAS, Kevin Watts, following his training from Rudolf  Stein College he became a leading instructor 
teaching other professionals working with highly at-risk youth, the innovative Waldorf model. Educators from 
across the globe, including a Harvard doctorate student, Lilly Sue, who recognized Kevin Watts as the "Father of 
TE Mathews", sought to observe and learn from his innovative methods in supporting highly at-risk students,   
as he was instrumental in integrating the Waldorf model in collaboration with his peers, into the Yuba County 
Court and Community Schools, and 

WHEREAS, Kevin Watts is recognized and appreciated for the amazing work he does every day as he has 
played a crucial role in shaping the minds and futures of the children in his care. His dedication and           
commitment to creating a safe, nurturing, and inspiring learning environment for students is truly               
commendable. Kevin championed YCCPCS students to engage the sciences, mathematics, and in all mediums of 
art from music, drawing and painting, to using welding as a form of art, and 

WHEREAS, Kevin Watts oversaw the construction and functionality of the YCCPCS aquaponics lab, 
providing exceptional learning opportunities in complex problem-solving through real-world applications of 
chemistry and physics. Despite his initial challenges, including the flooding of facilities and the ongoing       
challenge of the passing of some of his aquatic friends, he has successfully established a sustainable system that 
will endure for years to come, and  

WHEREAS,  Kevin Watts has touched the lives of countless students, instilling in them a love of learning 
and a desire to achieve their full potential, his work has not always been easy, it has been challenging at times. 
He stands out as an educator who is deeply dedicated to his students, he has been known to meet students where 
they live, help them get and stay enrolled in school, and support their completion on school work against all 
odds. Kevin’s passion for education and unwavering commitment to students is truly inspiring, for many he has 
gone the extra mile. He made a real difference in the lives of the children he taught, and for that, we are truly 
grateful, and 

WHEREAS, Kevin Watts has made a lasting impact on the school community, contributing to curriculum 

and instruction that has helped to improve the overall quality of education for all students. Kevin has also    

contributed his love of art to the YCCPCS school campus by designing and painting numerous murals in our 

buildings, we thank you for making our school a better place, and 

8



Revised 9/2021 

Yuba County Superintendent of Schools 
935 14th Street 

Marysville, CA 95901 

Quarterly Report on Williams Uniform Complaints 
(Education Code 35186(d)) 

District Name: Yuba County Office of Education 

Person completing this form: Sima Gandhi, Ed.D 

Title: Director – Curriculum and Instruction 

Quarterly Report Submission Date: 6/28/2024 

□ October 2023 (for July-September 2023)
1st Quarter

□ January 2024 (for October-December 2023)
2nd Quarter

□ April 2024 (for January-March 2024)
3rd Quarter

X July 2024 (for April-June 2024) 
4th Quarter 

Date for information to be reported publicly at governing board meeting: 7/10/24 
□ No Complaints were filed with any school in the county programs during the quarter

indicated above.

□ Complaints were filed with schools in the county programs during the quarter indicated
above.  The following chart summarizes the nature and resolution of these complaints.

General Subject Area 
Total # of 

Complaints # Resolved # Unresolved 
Textbooks and 

Instructional 
Materials 0 

Teacher Vacancy or 
Misassignment 0 

Facilities Conditions 0 

TOTALS 0 

__________________________________________________________________________
Print Name of Superintendent 

_________________________________________________________________________ 
Signature of Superintendent 

X 

 

 Rob Gregor

9



10



11



Yuba County Office of Education Page 1 of 5 

BB 9270 

Series 9000 – Board Bylaws BB 9270 

TITLE:   Conflict of Interest 

Series: Board Bylaws 

Version: 8 

Approved by:________________________________________ Effective Date: 8/12/2020 

 Yuba County Board of Education, Board President Previous Policy 

Date: 9/11/2013 

Policy Number: BB 9270 

The County Board shall adopt a resolution that specifies the terms of its conflict of interest code, 

designates any consultant positions required to complete conflict of interest reporting, and 

establishes disclosure categories required for each position.  The conflict of interest code must be 

approved by the appropriate code reviewing body.  Upon request by the code reviewing body, 

the County Board shall review the conflict of interest code and submit any changes to the code 

reviewing body. 

When a change in the conflict of interest code is necessitated due to changed circumstances, such 

as the hiring of a new consultant in a position that is not already designated in the conflict of 

interest code or a change to an existing consultant's scope of work in a manner that changes the 

consultant's position to a designated position, the amended code shall be submitted to the code 

reviewing body within 90 days.  (Government Code 87306) 

When reviewing and preparing the conflict of interest code, the County Board shall provide 

members of the community, the County Superintendent of Schools, COE staff, and consultants 

of the County Board adequate notice and a fair opportunity to present their views.  (Government 

Code 87311) 

County Board members shall annually file a Statement of Economic Interest/Form 700 in 

accordance with the disclosure categories specified in the conflict of interest code. A County 

Board member who leaves office shall, within 30 days, file a revised statement covering the 

period of time between the closing date of the last required statement and the date of leaving 

office.  (Government Code 87302, 87302.6) 

Conflict of Interest under the Political Reform Act 

A County Board member shall not make, participate in making, or in any way use or attempt to 

use his/her official position to influence a governmental decision in which he/she knows or has 

reason to know that he/she has a disqualifying conflict of interest.  A conflict of interest exists if 

the decision will have a "reasonably foreseeable material financial effect" on one or more of the 

County Board member's "economic interests," unless the effect is indistinguishable from the 

effect on the public generally or the County Board member's participation is legally required.  

(Government Code 87100, 87101, 87103; 2 CCR 18700-18709) 

12



 
Yuba County Office of Education Page 2 of 5 

BB 9270 

A County Board member is involved in making a governmental decision when, acting within the 

authority of his/her office or position, he/she votes on a matter, appoints a person, obligates or 

commits the County Board to any course of action, or votes to enter into or approve any 

contractual agreement on behalf of the County Board.  (2 CCR 18704) 

A County Board member who has a disqualifying conflict of interest on an agenda item that will 

be heard in an open meeting of the County Board shall abstain from voting on the matter.  

Although he/she may remain on the dais, if they do choose to stay their presence shall not be 

counted towards achieving a quorum for that matter.  A County Board member with a 

disqualifying conflict of interest shall not be present during a closed session meeting of the 

County Board when the decision is considered and shall not obtain or review a recording or any 

other nonpublic information regarding the issue. (2 CCR 18700) 

Conflict of Interest under Government Code 1090 - Financial Interest in a Contract 

County Board members shall not be financially interested in any contract made by the County 

Board and shall not be included in the development, preliminary discussions, negotiations, 

compromises, planning, reasoning, and specifications and solicitations for bids for such 

contracts.  If a County Board member has such a financial interest, the County Board is barred 

from entering into the contract.  (Government Code 1090; Klistoff v. Superior Court, (2007) 157 

Cal.App. 4th 469) 

A County Board member shall not be considered to be financially interested in a contract if 

his/her interest is a "noninterest" as defined in Government Code 1091.5. 

A County Board member shall not be considered to be financially interested in a contract if 

he/she has only a "remote interest" in the contract as specified in Government Code 1091 and if 

the remote interest is disclosed during a County Board meeting and noted in the official County 

Board minutes.  The affected County Board member shall not vote or debate on the matter or 

attempt to influence any other County Board member's vote.  (Government Code 1091) 

To avoid the appearance of impropriety, County Board members may decide not to participate in 

any discussion or action involving contracts where his/her interest is a "noninterest" or "remote 

interest" as described in Education Code 1091 and 1091.5. 

Common Law Doctrine Against Conflict of Interest 

A County Board member shall abstain from any official action in which his/her private or 

personal interest may conflict with his/her official duties. The County Board shall consult legal 

counsel whenever an actual or potential conflict of interest arises. 

County Board members shall abstain from voting on personnel matters that uniquely affect 

relatives.  Relative means an adult who is related to the County Board member by blood, affinity, 

or adoptive relationship within the third degree. 

13



 
Yuba County Office of Education Page 3 of 5 

BB 9270 

A relationship within the third degree includes an individual's parents, grandparents, great-

grandparents, children, grandchildren, great-grandchildren, brothers, sisters, aunts, uncles, 

nieces, nephews, and the similar family of the individual's spouse/registered domestic partner 

unless the individual is widowed or divorced. 

Rule of Necessity or Legally Required Participation 

On a case-by-case basis and upon advice of legal counsel, a County Board member with a 

financial interest in a contract may participate in the making of the contract if the rule of 

necessity or legally required participation applies pursuant to Government Code 87101 and 2 

CCR 18705. 

Incompatible Offices and Activities 

County Board members shall not engage in any employment or activity or hold any office which 

is inconsistent with, incompatible with, in conflict with, or inimical to the County Board 

member's duties as an officer of the COE.  (Government Code 1099, 1126) 

Gifts 

County Board members   may accept gifts only under the conditions and limitations specified in 

Government Code 89503 and 2 CCR 18730. 

The limitation on gifts does not apply to wedding gifts and gifts exchanged between individuals 

on birthdays, holidays, and other similar occasions, provided that the gifts exchanged are not 

substantially disproportionate in value.  (Government Code 89503) 

Gifts of travel and related lodging and subsistence shall be subject to the current gift limitation 

except as described in Government Code 89506. 

A gift of travel does not include travel provided by the County Board for its members.  

(Government Code 89506) 

Honoraria 

County Board members   shall not accept any honorarium, which is defined as any payment 

made in consideration for any speech given, article published, or attendance at any public or 

private gathering, in accordance with law.  (Government Code 89501, 89502) 

The term honorarium does not include:  (Government Code 89501) 

1. Earned income for personal services customarily provided in connection with a bona fide

business, trade, or profession unless the sole or predominant activity of the business, trade, or

profession is making speeches

14



 
Yuba County Office of Education Page 4 of 5 

BB 9270 

2. Any honorarium which is not used and, within 30 days after receipt, is either returned to

the donor or delivered to the COE for donation into the general fund without being claimed as a

deduction from income for tax purposes

Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 

1006  Qualifications for holding office 

35230-35240  Corrupt practices, especially: 

FAMILY CODE 

297.5  Rights, protections, and benefits of registered domestic partners 

GOVERNMENT CODE 

1090-1099  Prohibitions applicable to specified officers 

1125-1129  Incompatible activities 

81000-91014  Political Reform Act of 1974, especially: 

82003  Agency definition 

82011  Code reviewing body 

82019 Definition, designated employee 

82028  Definition, gift 

82030  Definition, income 

82033  Definition, interest in real property 

82034  Definition, investment 

87100-87103.6  General prohibitions 

87200-87210  Disclosure 

87300-87313  Conflict of interest code 

87500  Statements of economic interests 

89501-89503 Honoraria and gifts 

91000-91014  Enforcement 

PENAL CODE 

85-88  Bribes

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 2

18110-18997  Regulations of the Fair Political Practices Commission, especially:

18700-18707  General prohibitions

18722-18740  Disclosure of interests

18750.1-18756  Conflict of interest codes

COURT DECISIONS

McGee v. Balfour Beatty Construction, LLC, et al. (4/12/16, No. B262850)

Davis v. Fresno Unified School District (2015) 237 Cal.App.4th 261

Klistoff v. Superior Court, (2007) 157 Cal.App.4th 469

Thorpe v. Long Beach Community College District, (2000) 83 Cal.App.4th 655

Kunec v. Brea Redevelopment Agency, (1997) 55 Cal.App.4th 511

ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS

92 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 26 (2009)

92 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 19 (2009)

89 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 217 (2006)

15



 
Yuba County Office of Education Page 5 of 5 

BB 9270 

86 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 138(2003) 

85 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 60 (2002) 

82 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 83 (1999) 

81 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 327 (1998) 

80 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 320 (1997) 

69 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 255 (1986) 

68 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 171 (1985) 

65 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 606 (1982) 

63 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 868 (1980) 

Management Resources: 

CSBA PUBLICATIONS 

Conflict of Interest:  Overview of Key Issues for Governing Board Members, Fact Sheet, July 

2010 

FAIR POLITICAL PRACTICES COMMISSION PUBLICATIONS 

Can I Vote? A Basic Overview of Public Officials' Obligations Under the Conflict-of-Interest 

Rules, 2005 

INSTITUTE FOR LOCAL GOVERNMENT PUBLICATIONS 

Understanding the Basics of Public Service Ethics: Personal Financial Gain Laws, 2009 

Understanding the Basics of Public Service Ethics: Transparency Laws, 2009 

WEB SITES 

CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 

Fair Political Practices Commission:  http://www.fppc.ca.gov 

Institute of Local Government:  http://www.ca-ilg.org 

16



 
Yuba County Office of Education Page 1 of 2 

E 9270 

Series 9000 – Board Bylaws  E 9270 

TITLE: Conflict of Interest 

Series: Board Bylaws 

Version: New 

Approved by:________________________________________   Effective Date: 8/12/2020 

         Yuba County Board of Education, Board President Previous Policy 

Date: N/A 

Policy Number: E 9270 

Conflict of Interest Code of the 

Yuba County Board of Education 

The provisions of 2 CCR 18730 and any amendments to it adopted by the Fair Political Practices 

Commission, together with the attached Appendix specifying designated positions and disclosure 

categories, are incorporated by reference and shall constitute the County Board of Education's 

conflict of interest code. 

County Board members and all other individuals in designated positions shall file a Statement of 

Economic Interest/Form 700 in accordance with the disclosure categories listed in the attached 

Appendix.  The Statement of Economic Interest shall be filed with the appropriate code 

reviewing body.  The County Board shall make the statements available for public review and 

inspection. 

APPENDIX 

Disclosure Categories 

1. Category 1:  A person designated Category 1 shall disclose:

a. Interests in real property located entirely or partly within county boundaries, or

within two miles of the county boundaries, or of any land owned or used by the

County Board.

b. Investments or business positions in or income from sources which are engaged in

the acquisition or disposal of real property within the county, are contractors or

subcontractors which are or have been within the past two years engaged in work

or services of the type used by the County Board, or manufacture or sell supplies,

books,  machinery, or equipment of the type used by the County Board.

2. Category 2:  A person designated Category 2 shall disclose:

a. Investments or business positions in or income from sources which are

17



 
Yuba County Office of Education Page 2 of 2 

E 9270 

contractors or subcontractors engaged in work or services of the type used by the 

department which the designated person manages or directs. 

b. Investments or business positions in or income from sources which manufacture

or sell supplies, books, machinery, or equipment of the type used by the

department which the designated person manages or directs.

Designated Positions 

Government Code requires the conflict of interest code to identify positions that involve making 

or participating in decisions that may affect financial interests.  For each position so designated, 

the code also must specify what category or categories of financial interests are to be reported. 

1. Persons occupying the following positions are designated employees and must

disclose financial interests in Category 1.

Governing Board Members 

Superintendent of Schools 

Assistant Superintendent 

Chief Business Officer 

2. Persons occupying the following positions must disclose financial interests defined in

Category 2.

Directors 

Principals 

Program Coordinators 

Program Administrators 

Consultants to the County Board 

Disclosures for Consultants 

Consultants who are hired pursuant to Education Code 1042 may be designated individuals who 

are required to disclose financial interests as determined on a case-by-case basis.  The 

determination shall be in writing and include a description of the consultant's duties and a 

statement of the extent of disclosure requirements based upon that description.  All such 

determinations are public records and shall be retained for public inspection along with this 

conflict of interest code. 

A consultant is an individual who, pursuant to a contract with the County Board, makes a 

governmental decision pursuant to 2 CCR 18700.3. 

18



YUBA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT SALARY AND BENEFITS 

PROPOSED 2024-2025 
 
 

BASE SALARY 
 

Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 4 Step 5 Step 6 
185,959 193,397 201,133 209,178 217,545 226,247 

 
 

1. A newly elected/appointed Superintendent shall receive Step 1 of the Salary Schedule. 
 

2. Unless otherwise directed, the Superintendent's salary shall be agendized annually for 
approval at the June Board Meeting. 
 

3. This salary may be adjusted by the County Board of Education to include any annual 
negotiated settlements with YCOE bargaining units or any specific proposals from the 
Board or Superintendent for modification of the schedule. 

 
BENEFITS 
 

1. The County Superintendent of Schools shall receive the same fringe benefits granted to 
the management employees of the YCOE. 

 
2. The County Superintendent of Schools shall receive payment for professional dues as 

well as reimbursement for actual and necessary expenses incurred in serving as County 
Superintendent. 

 
3. The County Superintendent of Schools shall be assigned a county vehicle for use in 

fulfilling responsibilities as County Superintendent or may choose to receive the IRS 
mileage reimbursement for such responsibilities. 

 
4. The County Superintendent of Schools shall receive creditable compensation of $1,200 for 

holding an accredited Masters Degree or $1,700 for holding an accredited Doctoral Degree.  
Creditable compensation shall be added to the annual salary. 

 
5. The work year for the County Superintendent of Schools shall be based on 220 days of 

service and will receive twelve (12) sick leave days allocation per year. 
 
 
PROPOSED 5.10.2024 

19



Rob Gregor
Superintendent of Schools

Yuba County Office of Education
935 14th Street, Marysville CA | 530.749.4900

Yuba County Office of Education Staff Report
Yuba County Career Preparatory Charter School (YCCPCS)

Request for Material Revision

On April 15, 2024, the Yuba County Career Preparatory Charter School (YCCPCS) submitted a 
request for material revision to the Yuba County Office of Education. If approved, the request 
would be updated to include comprehensive descriptions that align with the petition review 
matrix's requirements (e.g., charter reform requirements, including but not limited to alignment 
with the eight state priorities, health and safety, staff qualifications, admissions, and independent 
study); newly enacted laws (e.g., independent study, discipline); and a missing 16th Element for 
countywide benefits describing each proposed location. In addition to ensuring all legal 
requirements are met, Yuba County Career Preparatory Charter School (YCCPCS) is requesting 
a material revision to its governance structure. 

Background
Yuba County Career Preparatory Charter School (YCCPCS) is a California public countywide 
benefit charter school (Education Code 47605.6/ 47612.1) authorized by the Yuba County Board 
of Education (YCBE) and administered by the Yuba County Office of Education (YCOE). It 
began operating in July 1995 and is among the first charter schools to operate in California.

Today, charter schools are under the scrutiny of legislators and the public. Non-classroom-based 
charter schools across the state have drawn particular scrutiny for unethical practices and misuse 
of public funds. Therefore, the existing governance structure is not one that is favored as an 
authorizer best practice. The material revision would demonstrate that YCCPCS is well-managed 
by the Yuba County Office of Education (YCOE) and well-regulated by the Yuba County Board 
of Education (YCBE). It is important to note that the existing YCCPCS advisory body reviewed 
this material revision to the charter petition on February 6, 2024 with opportunity for public 
input and approved it on April 9, 2024. 

The current five-year petition term is set to expire on 11/14/25,  pursuant to SB 114 and 
Education Code section 47607.4, YCCPCS plans to submit the final renewal petition between 
spring and August 2025. 

Public Hearing

In compliance with Education Code 47605(b), the Yuba County Board of Education held a 
Public Hearing to consider the level of support for the material revision to the petition. Education 

20



Code 47605(b) requires that the Yuba County Board of Education conduct a second public 
hearing and render its decision on the material revision request within 90 days of receipt of the 
requested revision unless both parties agree to an extension. Any findings of fact must be shared 
with YCCPCS Charter at least fifteen (15) days prior to the determination hearing.

Material Revision
Education Code section 47607(a)(2) states a material revision to a charter petition is governed by 
the standards and criteria in section 47605, “and shall include, but not be limited to, a reasonably 
comprehensive description of any new requirement of charter schools enacted into law after the 
charter was originally granted or last renewed.”

In reviewing petitions for the establishment of charter schools pursuant to Section 47605, “the 
chartering authority shall be guided by the intent of the Legislature that charter schools are and 
should become an integral part of the California educational system and that the establishment of 
charter schools should be encouraged. The governing board of the school district shall grant a 
charter for the operation of a school under this part if it is satisfied that granting the charter is 
consistent with sound educational practice and with the interests of the community in which the 
school is proposing to locate. The governing board of the school district shall consider the 
academic needs of the pupils the school proposes to serve.”

 Reasons for Denial
The authorizing board shall not deny a request to materially revise an existing charter unless it 
makes written factual findings, specific to the particular petition, setting forth specific facts to 
support one or more of the following findings:

1. The charter school presents an unsound educational program for the pupils to be enrolled 
in the charter school.

2. The petitioners are demonstrably unlikely to successfully implement the program set 
forth in the petition.

3. The petition does not contain the number of signatures required by subdivision (a) [of 
section 47605].  This item does not pertain to a material revision.

4. The petition does not contain an affirmation of each of the conditions described in 
subdivision (e) [of section 47605].

5. The petition does not contain reasonably comprehensive descriptions of all of the 15 
elements set forth in [section 47605, subdivision (b)(5)].

6. The petition does not contain a declaration of whether or not the charter school shall be 
deemed the exclusive public employer of the employees of the charter school for 
purposes of Chapter 10.7 (commencing with Section 3540) of Division 4 of Title 1 of the 
Government Code. (Education Code § 47605(b))

Two other findings may support denial of a material revision that proposes to expand an existing 
charter school:

2

21



7. The charter school is demonstrably unlikely to serve the interests of the entire community 
in which the school is proposing to locate. This finding must include an analysis and 
consideration of the fiscal impact of the proposed charter school. Pursuant to Education 
Code §47605(c)(7), the county board of education must also describe the specific facts 
and circumstances that analyze and consider:

a. The extent to which the proposed charter school would substantially undermine 
existing services, academic offerings, or programmatic offerings. 

8. Whether the proposed charter school would duplicate a program currently offered within 
the school district and whether the existing program has sufficient capacity for the pupils 
proposed to be served within reasonable proximity to where the charter school intends to 
locate.

a. To deny a petition based on fiscal impact under 47605 (c)(8), the school district 
must demonstrate it is not positioned to absorb the fiscal impact of the proposed 
charter school.

(Ed. Code sec. 47607(a)(4).) For a material revision, analysis under paragraphs (7) and (8) above 
shall be limited to consideration only of the impact of the proposed material revision.

STAFF REPORT FINDINGS OF FACT: 
YCCPCS CHARTER REQUEST FOR MATERIAL REVISION

At a Glance
Meets 

Requirements
Mostly Meets 
Requirements

Does Not Meet 
Requirements

GUIDING QUESTIONS BASED ON REASONS FOR DENIAL

#1 Does this charter present a sound educational program?

#2
Are the petitioners demonstrably likely to successfully 
implement the program set forth in the petition?

#3 Does the petition contain the number of signatures required? NA

#4 Does the petition contain an affirmation of each of the 
conditions described in subdivision (e) [of section 47605]?

3

22



#5
Does the petition contain reasonably comprehensive 
descriptions of all of the 15 elements set forth in section 47605, 
subdivision (c)(5)?

See A-O & Supplemental 
sections below

Elements Topic Meets 
Standards

Summary of Deficiency

A Element 1 Educational 
Program

B Element 2 Measurable Student 
Outcomes

C Element 3 Student Progress 
Measurement

D Element 4 Governance

E Element 5 Employee 
Qualifications

F Element 6 Health and Safety

G Element 7 Racial/Ethnic 
Balance

H Element 8 Admissions

I Element 9 Independent Audits

J Element 10 Suspension / 
Expulsion

K Element 11 STRS

L Element 12 Attendance 
Alternatives

M Element 13 Post-Employment 
Rights See information below

4

23



N Element 14 Dispute Resolution 

O Element 15 Closure Procedures

Required Supplemental Information Meets 
Standard

Summary of Deficiency

1. Financial/ Administrative Plan

2. Facilities

3. Impact Statement

4. Special Education
See information below

Guiding Questions Meets Standard

#6 Does the petition contain a declaration of whether or not the charter 
school shall be deemed the exclusive public employer of the 
employees of the charter school?

#7 Will the charter schools serve the interests of the entire community 
in which the school is proposing to locate?

#8 Is the district positioned to absorb the fiscal impact of the proposed 
charter school?

Detailed Staff Report

#1 Does the petitioner present a sound educational program?
In their report, the petitioner was able to clearly articulate a sound educational model including a 
clearly articulated vision and mission statement. YCCPCS educates students in grades K through 
12 and adults who need or desire an alternative learning model to traditional education. Students 
come to YCCPCS for various reasons, including flexible scheduling, specialized vocational 
opportunities with CTE onsite training, small class sizes, and hands-on learning opportunities. 
Some are attracted to faster credit acquisition, which allows them to ‘catch up’ after becoming 
credit deficient, and some can graduate early.

5

24



As a Dashboard Alternative Accountability School (DASS), YCCPCS serves an unduplicated 
count of at least 70% of the school’s total enrollment (upon first entry to the school) that is 
composed of at-promise youth, as defined in CA Education Code §52052. The school must 
requalify for DASS status every three years.

Students attending YCCPCS have a history of being habitually truant, emotional distress or 
behavioral issues, teen parenting, other socio-economic issues, and health issues. Some students 
have experienced or are currently experiencing unpredictable and traumatic life conditions, 
which include absentee parent(s), emotional, physical, and sexual abuse, neglect, and mental 
illness.

#2 Are the petitioners demonstrably likely to successfully implement the program set forth in 
the petition? 

The findings include the following: 

● Although the petition discusses post-employment rights, the petitioner does not provide 
information on the following: 

○ School district employee’s return employment rights, including 
■ whether, and how staff may resume employment within the district or 

authorizer

It is important to note that former employees of YCOE are bound by the contract if they choose 
to be reemployed. Post-employment rights are followed as stated in the YCCEA and YCOE 
Superintendent Collective Bargaining Agreement Article 30.b. 

●  The material revision does not provide a process for notifying the district of residence 
and authorizing LEA when a special education student enrolls, becomes eligible, 
ineligible and/or leaves the charter. The material revision provides a process for when a 
special education student leaves a charter. However, the material revision does not 
provide a process to notify the district and YCOE for when a student enrolls, becomes 
eligible / ineligible for special education. 

● The material revision makes a statement that “YCCPCS adheres to the legal mandates 
outlined in the Individuals with Disabilities Education Improvement Act (IDEIA) in 
implementing regulations,” which is missing critical information. A process for how the 
transition to and from a district when a student with an IEP enrolls in or transfers out of 
the charter is not provided. 

● The petition does not clarify the responsibilities of each party for Due Process. 
Specifically the following are omitted in the petition: 

○ The use of  SELPA as a resource for Alternative Dispute Resolution. 

6

25



○ Parents / Guardians rights to receive parental safeguards which delineate due 
process rights.

The Yuba County Office of Education strongly encourages YCCPCS to add missing 
information to their petition in order to ensure legal compliance.  

#3 Signature collection is not applicable to a material revision.

#4 Does the petition contain an affirmation of each of the conditions described in subdivision 
(e) [of section 47605]? Yes. All required affirmations are contained within the petition. 

 #5 Does the petition contain reasonably comprehensive descriptions of all of the 15 elements 
set forth in section 47605, subdivision (c)(5)? 

The petition contains most of the required elements, however, a few of the required legal and/or 
comprehensive descriptions are missing, as described below and in the Supplemental 
Requirements that follow.

M. Element 13 (Post-employment Rights of  Employees) is missing the following legal 
requirements:

● Although the petition discusses post-employment rights, the petitioner does not provide 
information on the following: 

○ School district employee’s return employment rights, including 
■ whether, and how staff may resume employment within the district or 

authorizer

It is important to note that former employees of YCOE are bound by the contract if they choose 
to be reemployed. Post-employment rights are followed as stated in the YCCEA and YCOE 
Superintendent Collective Bargaining Agreement Article 30.b. 

Required Supplemental Information

Special Education requirements are missing per Education Code 47641(a) and 47646.    

The following information is missing from the material revision: 
● The material revision does not provide a process for notifying the district of residence 

and authorizing LEA when a special education student enrolls, becomes eligible, 
ineligible and/or leaves the charter. The material revision provides a process for when a 
special education student leaves a charter. However, the material revision does not 

7

26



provide a process to notify the district and YCOE for when a student enrolls, becomes 
eligible / ineligible for special education. 

● The material revision makes a statement that “YCCPCS adheres to the legal mandates 
outlined in the Individuals with Disabilities Education Improvement Act (IDEIA) in 
implementing regulations,” which is missing critical information. A process for how the 
transition to and from a district when a student with an IEP enrolls in or transfers out of 
the charter is not provided. 

● The petition does not clarify the responsibilities of each party for Due Process. 
Specifically the following are omitted in the petition: 

○ The use of  SELPA as a resource for Alternative Dispute Resolution. 
○ Parents / Guardians rights to receive parental safeguards which delineate due 

process rights.

#6 Does the petition contain a declaration of whether or not the charter school shall be 
deemed the exclusive public employer of the employees of the charter school? 
Yes, the material revision contains the appropriate declaration. 

#7 Is the charter school demonstrably unlikely to serve the interests of the entire 
community in which the school is proposing to locate? This does not apply with the proposed 
material revision. 

#8 Is the district positioned to absorb the fiscal impact of the proposed charter school?
This does not apply with the proposed material revision. 

Conclusion
The implementation of AB 1505 (signed into law in 2019 shortly after the last petition renewal) 
and numerous laws implemented since were among the largest set of laws to be imposed upon 
charter schools since the inception of the Charter Schools Act. There is clear and convincing 
evidence a need to update the petition to include comprehensive descriptions that align with the 
petition review matrix's requirements (e.g., charter reform requirements, including but not 
limited to alignment with the eight state priorities, health and safety, staff qualifications, 
admissions, and independent study); newly enacted laws (e.g., independent study, discipline), 
and a missing 16th Element for countywide benefits describing each proposed location. 
 
CA Education Code 47607(2)(A) states that material revisions of charters are governed by the 
standards and criteria in Section 47605 and shall include, but not be limited to, a reasonably 
comprehensive description of any new requirement of charter schools enacted into law after the 
charter was originally granted or last renewed.  

The YCOE review team has determined that, to be successful in the long term, it will be critical 
for YCCPCS to address the documented findings. The following paragraphs contain language to 

8

27



support the Yuba County Board of Education should they choose to approve or deny the Yuba 
County Career Preparatory Charter School’s (YCCPCS) request for a material revision.  

Should the Yuba County Board of Education approve the request for material revision, it is 
strongly recommended that the Board of Education adopt the findings in this Staff Report and 
conditionally approve the material revision contingent upon YCCPCS adding the following 
information by the established deadlines, to ensure compliance with Education Code. Missing 
the deadline would default to denial:

Element 13 (Post-employment Rights of  Employees) is missing the following legal 
requirements:

● Although the petition discusses post-employment rights, the petitioner does not provide 
information on the following: 

○ School district employee’s return employment rights, including 
■ whether, and how staff may resume employment within the district or 

authorizer

It is important to note that former employees of YCOE are bound by the contract if they choose 
to be reemployed. Post-employment rights are followed as stated in the YCCEA and YCOE 
Superintendent Collective Bargaining Agreement Article 30.b. 

Required Supplemental Information

Special Education requirements are missing per Education Code 47641(a) and 47646.    

The following information is missing from the material revision: 
● The material revision does not provide a process for notifying the district of residence 

and authorizing LEA when a special education student enrolls, becomes eligible, 
ineligible and/or leaves the charter. The material revision provides a process for when a 
special education student leaves a charter. However, the material revision does not 
provide a process to notify the district and YCOE for when a student enrolls, becomes 
eligible / ineligible for special education. 

● The material revision makes a statement that “YCCPCS adheres to the legal mandates 
outlined in the Individuals with Disabilities Education Improvement Act (IDEIA) in 
implementing regulations,” which is missing critical information. A process for how the 
transition to and from a district when a student with an IEP enrolls in or transfers out of 
the charter is not provided. 

● The petition does not clarify the responsibilities of each party for Due Process. 
Specifically the following are omitted in the petition: 

○ The use of  SELPA as a resource for Alternative Dispute Resolution. 
○ Parents / Guardians rights to receive parental safeguards which delineate due 

process rights.

9

28



-or-

Should the Yuba County Board of Education approve the material revision without 
conditions, the Board does not need to make or adopt any written findings of fact.

-or-

Should the Yuba County Board of Education deny the Yuba County Career Preparatory Charter 
School (YCCPCS) request for material revision, it is necessary for the Board to make written 
findings specific to the material revision to support denial. In this event, it is strongly 
recommended that the Board adopt the following findings:

The Yuba County Office of Education’s staff reviewed the request for material revision utilizing 
the criteria for approval set forth in Education Code Section 47605 and produced a written Staff 
Report including findings of fact. Based upon its comprehensive review and analysis of the 
request for material revision, the Yuba County Board of Education adopts the Staff Report as the 
written findings of the Board and, on that basis, denies the material revision based on the finding 
that the petitioners are demonstrably unlikely to successfully implement the program as proposed 
in the material revision. Reasons for denial include a lack of understanding of legal requirements. 

10

29



Yuba County Career Preparatory
Charter School Charter Petition

Charter Term 11/15/2018- 11/14/2023
Pursuant to SB 114 and Education Code section 47607.4, the Term Expiration

Is Extended Until 11/14/25

Cynthia Soares,MS, PPS, Director
Shelly Arvizu,Operational Services Administrator
Ken Hamel,CTE& Adult Education Administrator

Submitted to the Yuba County O�fice of Education
ForMaterial Revision onApril 15, 2024

30



YUBACOUNTYOFFICEOFEDUCATION

BOARDOFEDUCATION

John Nicoletti, President
Tracy Bishop, Vice President

Desiree Hastey
Marjorie Renicker
Katharine Rosser

ADMINISTRATION

Rob Gregor, Superintendent
Bobbi Abold,Deputy Superintendent

Aaron�ornsberry,Director of Business Services
Kristen Nottle-Powell, Assistant Superintendent of Special Education

Mary Hang,Director of Human Resources

2
31



Contents
Certification of Complete Charter Petition..................................................................................... 5
Assurances....................................................................................................................................6
Element I: Educational Program....................................................................................................7

Exclusive Partnership.............................................................................................................. 8
Mission and Vision Statements................................................................................................8
Target Student Population & Community Need....................................................................... 9
Attendance.............................................................................................................................11
What It Means to Be an Educated Person in the 21st Century............................................. 12
How Learning Best Occurs.................................................................................................... 14

Instructional Approaches and Strategies......................................................................... 15
Additional High School Opportunities.................................................................................... 17
Instructional Delivery............................................................................................................. 18
Meeting Student Needs......................................................................................................... 18
SELPA Membership...............................................................................................................20
Special Education Plan and Required Supplemental Criteria................................................20
Section 504 and Americans with Disability Act (ADA)........................................................... 25
Annual Goal and State Priority Alignment............................................................................. 25
Charter Schools Serving High School Students.................................................................... 25

Element II: Measurable Pupil Outcomes..................................................................................... 27
Pupil Outcome Alignment...................................................................................................... 27
Goals, Actions, Metrics, and Outcomes.................................................................................27
YCCPCS Aligned Plans.........................................................................................................28

Element III: Student Progress Measurement...............................................................................33
Local Assessments................................................................................................................33
State Assessments................................................................................................................ 34
Assessment Methods............................................................................................................ 34

Element IV: Location of Each Proposed...................................................................................... 35
Charter School Facility.................................................................................................................35
Element V: Governance Structure............................................................................................... 35

Legal Organization of the School...........................................................................................35
Element VI: Qualifications for Employment................................................................................. 37

Staff Qualifications for Employment.......................................................................................38
Evaluation Process................................................................................................................ 38
Other Learning Support Providers......................................................................................... 38

Element VII: Health and Safety Procedures............................................................................... 38
Health and Safety Procedures...............................................................................................38
Facilities.................................................................................................................................39

Element VIII: Achieving a Racial and Ethnic Balance Among Students......................................39
Element IX: Annual Independent Financial Audits & Impact Statement.....................................40

Independent Annual Audit..................................................................................................... 40

3
32



Civil Liability........................................................................................................................... 41
Element X: Suspension and Expulsion Procedures.................................................................... 41

Due Process.......................................................................................................................... 41
Suspension............................................................................................................................ 42
Expulsion............................................................................................................................... 49
Corporal Punishment............................................................................................................. 54

Element XI: CA State Teacher Retirement System..................................................................... 54
Element XII: Dispute Resolution Procedures...............................................................................55
Element XIII: Admission Requirements...................................................................................... 55

Public Random Drawing Process.......................................................................................... 55
Enrollment Process................................................................................................................57
Written Agreement for Independent Study............................................................................ 57

Element XIV: Public School Attendance Alternatives.................................................................. 58
Element XV: Post-Employment Rights of Employees................................................................. 58
Element XVI: Closure Procedures...............................................................................................59

Documentation and Notification of Closure Action................................................................ 59
Records................................................................................................................................. 60
Financial Close-Out............................................................................................................... 60
Dissolution of Assets............................................................................................................. 60

Required Supplemental Criteria: Financial/................................................................................. 61
Administrative Plan Financial Budget.......................................................................................... 61
Required Supplemental Criteria: Community Impact...................................................................61
Material Revision Appendix......................................................................................................... 62

4
33



Certification of Complete Charter Petition

By signing below, I certify as follows:
1. �at I am the authorized representative and that I am competent and qualified to certify

to the facts herein;
2. �at, as an authorized representative, I have personal knowledge of the facts forming

the basis of this certification; and
3. �at I deem the charter petition to be complete.

___________________________________________ _______________________
Signature/ Title Date

5
34



Assurances
● Yuba County O�fice of Education (YCOE) is deemed the exclusive public-school employer of the Yuba

County Career Prepartory Charter School (YCCPCS) employees for purposes of the Educational
Employment Relations Act. [Ref. Education Code Section 47605(b)(6)]

● YCCPCS shall be nonsectarian in its programs, admission policies, employment practices, and all
other operations. [Ref. Education Code Section 47605(d)(1)]

● YCCPCS shall not charge tuition, fees, or other mandatory payments for attendance at the charter
school or for participation in programs that are required for students. [Ref. Education Code Section
47605(d)(1)]

● �eGoverning Board of the YCCPCS is committed to equal opportunity for all individuals in
education. YCCPCS programs and activities do not discriminate based on gender, gender identity,
age, sex, race, color, religion, ancestry, gender expression, national origin, ethnic group
identification, marital or parental status, physical or mental disability, sexual orientation, or the
perception of one or more of such characteristics. We provide equal access to the Boy Scouts of
America and other youth groups without discrimination.�e Board shall promote programs that
eliminate discriminatory practices in all district activities. YCCPCS requires our school sta�f to take
immediate steps to report any act of discrimination, bullying, intimidation, or harassment to the
appropriate school personnel. [Ref. Education Code Section 47605(d)(1)]

�e following individuals represent the appropriate titles for communication purposes:

Equity Compliance O�fice/Title IX/Yuba County O�fice of Education Title IX,
Reasonable Accommodations, UCPCoordinator

Mary Hang, Executive Director of Human Resources
530-749-4870, mary.hang@yubacoe.k12.ca.us

935 14th Street, Marysville, CA 95901.

Section 504 Coordinator
Cynthia Soares, Director

530-749-4000, cynthia.soares@yubacharterschool.org
1104 E. Street, Marysville, CA 95901

● YCCPCS will admit all students who wish to attend the school and submit a timely application unless
the school receives a greater number of applications than there are spaces for students, in which case
a lottery will take place per California charter laws and regulations. [Ref. CA Ed Code Section
47605(d)(2)(B)]

● Except as required by Education Code Section 47605(d)(2), admission to YCCPCS shall not be
determined according to the place of residence of the student or their parents within the State.

● YCCPCS will adhere to all provisions of federal law related to students with disabilities, including,
but not limited to, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Title II of the Americans with
Disabilities Act of 1990, and the Individuals with Disabilities in Education Improvement Act of 2004.

● YCCPCS will meet all requirements for employment set forth in applicable provisions of law,

6
35

mailto:mary.hang@yubacoe.k12.ca.us


including, but not limited to, credentials, as necessary. [Ref. Education Code Section 47605.6(l)]
● If a pupil is expelled or leaves the charter school without graduating or completing the school year

for any reason, the charter school shall notify the superintendent of the school district of the pupil’s
last known address within 30 days and shall, upon request, provide that school district with a copy of
the pupil's cumulative record, including report cards or a transcript of grades and health
information.

● YCCPCS will not require mandatory parent volunteer hours as a criterion for admission.
● YCCPCS will follow all other federal, state, and local laws and regulations pertaining to the applicant

or the charter school's operation.

Independent Study
● YCCPCS will follow the applicable public school guidelines for independent study, as evidenced in

the annual audit. [Ref. Education Code Section 47612.5(b)]
● YCCPCS will meet the requirement related to the ADA to FTE certificated employees ratio as

prescribed. [Ref. Education Code Section 51745.6(a)]
● YCCPCS will ensure independent study by each pupil shall be coordinated, evaluated, and, under the

general supervision of an employee of the local educational agency who possesses a valid
certification document pursuant to Section 44865 or an emergency credential pursuant to Section
44300, registered as required by law. [Ref. Education Code Section 51747.5(a)]

● YCCPCS will claim apportionment credit for independent study only to the extent of the time value
of pupil work products, as personally judged in each instance by a certificated teacher employed by
the local educational agency, or the combined time value of pupil work product and pupil
participation in synchronous instruction. [Ref. Education Code Section 51747.5(b)]

___________________________________________ _______________________
Signature/ Title Date

7
36



Element I: Educational Program

Exclusive Partnership
Yuba County Career Preparatory Charter School (YCCPCS) is a California public countywide
benefit charter school (Education Code 47605.6/ 47612.1) authorized by the Yuba County Board
of Education (YCBE) and administered by the Yuba County O�fice of Education (YCOE). It began
operating in July 1995 and is among the first charter schools to operate in California.

Except for the requirement that a pupil be a California resident, subdivision (b) of Section 47612
shall not apply to a charter school program that provides instruction exclusively in partnership
with any of the following:

● �e Federal Workforce Investment Act of 1998 (Pub. L. No.105-220; 29 U.S.C. Sec. 2801, et
seq.)

● Federally a�filiated Youth Build programs
● Federal Job Corps training or instruction is provided under a memorandum of

understanding with the federal provider.
● �eCalifornia Conservation Corps or local conservation corps is certified by the

California Conservation Corps pursuant to Sections 14406 or 14507.5 of the Public
Resources Code.

Mission and Vision Statements
�e YCCPCS vision andmission statement focus onmotivating students to complete their
education using a vocational focus and providing several Career Technical Education (CTE)
program options. CTE fills a previously unmet need in Marysville and the surrounding
communities.

Vision
To support self-directed, lifelong learning opportunities in a safe and positive environment in
which all learners can work toward reaching their full academic and professional potential.

Mission Statement
Yuba County Career Preparatory Charter School (YCCPCS) will empower learners as
problem-solving, critical thinkers with the social, academic, and career technical skills
necessary to be successful in the community, workplace, and continuing education.

8
37



Collaborating closely with the entire learning community, YCCPCS commits to quality,
independent learner-centered education.

Target Student Population&Community Need

Students Served
YCCPCS educates students in grades K through 12 and adults who need or desire an alternative
learning model to traditional education. Students come to YCCPCS for various reasons,
including �lexible scheduling, specialized vocational opportunities with CTE onsite training,
small class sizes, and hands-on learning opportunities. Some are attracted to faster credit
acquisition, which allows them to ‘catch up’ a�ter becoming credit deficient, and some can
graduate early.

As a Dashboard Alternative Accountability School (DASS), YCCPCS serves an unduplicated
count of at least 70% of the school’s total enrollment (upon first entry to the school) that is
composed of at-promise youth, as defined in CA Education Code §52052. �e school must
requalify for DASS status every three years.

Students attending YCCPCS have a history of being habitually truant, emotional distress or
behavioral issues, teen parenting, other socio-economic issues, and health issues. Some
students have experienced or are currently experiencing unpredictable and traumatic life
conditions, which include absentee parent(s), emotional, physical, and sexual abuse, neglect,
andmental illness.

YCCPCS partners with a program identified in Education Code 47612.1 to provide educational
services to adult-aged students qualified for the federal Workforce Investment Opportunity Act
program (WIOA). WIOA is a federally funded program designed to promote increased
employment, job retention, earnings, and occupational skills improvement by participants.

Needs and Challenges of Student Groups Served

At-Promise Youth
As reported on the United States Census Bureau Quick Facts website, nearly 80% of Yuba
County residents identify asWhite (56%White alone, not Hispanic or Latino), with a
countywide poverty rate of 15.6%. More than 80% of YCCPCS students are considered
‘at-promise’. Our students have been “educationally traumatized” by one or more educators in
their past, they have lost parents, experienced physical, emotional, or sexual abuse, been

9
38



present during domestic violence, are credit deficient, are truant or chronically absent from
school, have experienced bullying in at least one way: physically, emotionally, including
in-person and through the use of social media, have been previously expelled or suspended on
one or more occasions or have repeated an academic year (retained).

Kidsdata.org reports that in California between 2011 and 2017, more than 1 in 3 children (36%)
had at least one adverse childhood experience (ACE), more than 1 in 7 (15%) had two or more
ACEs, and nearly 1 in 25 (4%) had four ACEs or more. In Yuba County, 44% of households with
children reported having one to three ACEs, and 13% reported having experienced four or more
ACEs. Since last reported, the COVID-19 pandemic and other traumatic events have likely
increased these percentages.

�e numerically significant student groups that followmay have additional challenges and
needs.

Students Classified as SocioeconomicallyDisadvantaged
�e 2022 CA Dashboard reported that 91% of students enrolled at YCCPCS are from
socioeconomically disadvantaged households and closely mirrors the data of the overall student
population. Consistently, at least 70% of these YCCPCS families struggle with stable housing,
transportation, food, clothing, medical care, and steady employment. Historically, these
students struggle academically, have low attendance, and have high chronic absenteeism.
Before 2020-21, they had an annual suspension rate of 3-7%. Pre-pandemic stability rates for
this student group increased from 40% in 2018 to nearly 57% in 2021. As of Spring 2022, stability
reverted to 40%. Tomake gains in academic achievement, YCCPCS strives to build strong
personal relationships with students and their families and provides themwith various
real-world learning connections that give them a sense of connectedness to the school
community. YCCPCS sta�f understand that relationships must precede learning.

StudentswithDisabilities
Parents/guardians of students with disabilities come to us frustrated by their student's lack of
progress in their education plan.�ese same students are also likely classified as “at-promise”
and socioeconomically disadvantaged with the added challenge of navigating a disability. On
average, academic achievement for this group of students is 10% less than the overall
population, with an even greater gap than other numerically significant student groups,
potentially leading to this group of students being less prepared for postsecondary transitions.

Hispanic
While the English learner rate is only 7.65%, the percentage of students identifying as Hispanic
falls just short of 40%. Students classified as English learners are o�ten considered ‘Long-Term
English Language Learners (LTELs),’ having been classified this way for over six years.

10
39



Long-term classification results in years of additional language support requirements and o�ten
lacks the needed support to build a positive self-identity and dual language skills.

�e Hispanic population has academically exceeded the percentage of students proficient on the
CAASPP ELA assessment each year since Spring 2018 but scored much closer to the overall
proficiency levels on the CAASPPmath assessment. Additionally, the last reported college-going
rate in DataQuest for students identifying as Hispanic was 20% compared to the overall rate of
14.6%. Interestingly, the percentage of students last reported on the 2020 CA Dashboard
Additional Report for College/Career Measures indicated only 10% of students identifying as
Hispanic were ‘prepared’ and 0% were ‘approaching prepared’ compared to the overall rate of
13% andWhite rate of 18.5%. Although this student group is ‘less’ prepared for college/career,
more students attend college.

White
With nearly 80% of the school population identifying asWhite, this student group's needs and
challenges closely mirror those already addressed in the whole school population. One point not
discussed previously comes fromDataQuest reporting in 2020 that just under 10% of YCCPCS
students enrolled in a postsecondary institution of higher education (e.g., college or university)
within 12 or 16 months of completing high school.�e rate is down from the nearly 36% reported
the year prior, significantly higher than the overall rate of 24%.

Attendance
YCCPCS recognizes the important role of attendance in a student’s academic career and expects
that students will earn daily attendance. California State Law requires students who have not
graduated high school to attend school until their 18th birthday. California Ed Code 48205
allows for the following exceptions: personal illness, medical appointments, quarantine by a
medical public health o�ficial, a death in the immediate family, court appearances, or
school-sponsored activities. In addition, students over 18 are excused from jury duty or working
in the o�ficial capacity of a county elections o�ficer. Students are excused for observation of a
religious holiday or ceremony. (Cal Ed Code 46014).

YCCPCS provides 175 instructional days and adheres to charter school instructional time
requirements established in California Education Code sections 46207, 46208, 47612(d)(3),
47612.5, and California Code of Regulations, Title 5, 11960.

YCCPCSmaintains accurate and contemporaneous written records that document all student
attendance andmakes these records available for audit and inspection. YCCPCS works with
students, guardians, and teachers through the development of personalized learning plans and
with the Yuba County School Attendance Review Board (SARB) to ensure students attend
school. YCCPCS takes proactive measures to encourage and counsel students at risk of truancy

11
40



or chronic absenteeism by developing contracts with students, guardians, counselors, and
advisory teachers to support attendance. Credit-deficient students can enroll in credit recovery
classes during summer break and the school year.

As required for independent study programs, YCCPCSmaintains a tiered engagement plan to
support students and parents in improving attendance, as outlined in the YCOE Board Policy
(Appendix).

Expectations

Meetings/StudyRequirements
YCCPCSmakes every e�fort to provide early intervention and behavior support to parents and
students who do not meet expectations. It is the responsibility of the parent to arrange
transportation for their student to attend all scheduled appointments and activities. Failure to
report to two appointments may result in termination of this agreement. Turning in less than
the assigned hours of academic work or missing an appointment may result in absences leading
to truancy.

What ItMeans to Be an Educated Person in the 21st Century

Schoolwide Learner Outcomes (SLOs)
By encouraging students to pursue their interests, talents, and passions, YCCPCS enables
students to become self-motivated, competent, and lifelong learners who pursue academic
competencies and requirements.

Perceive, Believe, Achieve
�e YCCPCS Schoolwide Learner Outcomes (SLOs) are: Perceive, Believe, Achieve
SLOs are posted around the school and appear onmany documents. But what do these words
stand for? Members of the YCCPCS learning community will know, understand, and be able to:

● Perceive themselves as supported and self-directed, engaged, lifelong learners who
● Believe the essential skills they gain and the resources available will help them
● Achieve on their chosen pathway of success.

To achieve a goal, one must first see themselves, or (1) PERCEIVE themselves as someone who
can achieve it. �en, they take the steps toward the goal. As they do, they (2) BELIEVEmore and
more that the goal is going to be accomplished. Once they’ve taken all the steps toward the goal,
they will (3) ACHIEVE the goal.

12
41



General Non-Academic Skills andQualities
G.R.O.W.L. is a YCCPCS tool to support students on their chosen pathway because it shows the
relationship between behavior and achievement. Sometimes, the barriers to achieving goals are
because of our own choices and behaviors. At YCCPCS, students are supported in positive
behaviors to help them achieve their goals.�e words for those positive behaviors make up the
acronym G.R.O.W.L.

Social-Emotional Skills
Grow To achieve your goals and your potential, take steps to improve every day.
Respect Treat others how you wish to be treated.
Own Always take responsibility for your actions.
Work Give your best e�fort because your future is in your hands.
Love Show care and concern for yourself and others.

Academic Skills and Qualities
YCCPCS intends for all students to have the following academic skills and qualities important
for an educated person:

Proficiency inEnglish LanguageArts
Students will demonstrate their ability to communicate e�fectively through reading, writing,
listening, speaking, and presentation using multiple forms of expression (e.g., written, oral,
andmultimedia). Communication skills will be appropriate to the setting and audience.
Students will read and interpret information from various sources to gain valuable and
applicable knowledge.

Proficiency inMathematics
Students will demonstrate their ability to calculate and solve problems with clarity and
precision by applying mathematical principles and operations. Skill areas may include
arithmetic, algebra, geometry, personal finance, and other mathematical subjects that the
teacher and parent deem appropriate.

Proficiency inHistory-Social Science
Students will demonstrate an understanding of the history of mankind and governmental
functions by

● Identifying relationships between past and present events, situations, diverse peoples,
governments, finances, and world politics

13
42



● Drawing conclusions about the future using evidence from the past
● Applying physical and cultural geography to their understanding of diverse societies
● Identifying the founding principles, structures, operations, and relationships of the

government of the United States

Proficiency in Science
Students will successfully utilize scientific research and inquiry methods to understand and
apply the major concepts underlying various branches of science, including physics, chemistry,
biology, ecology, astronomy, engineering, and geology. Students will demonstrate that they can:

● Analyze how the text structures information into categories or hierarchies
● Evaluate the hypotheses, data, analysis, and conclusions in a science or technical text
● Synthesize information from a range of sources

HowLearning Best Occurs

Framework
YCCPCS serves students and families who have chosen a Personalized Learning Program for
some of the following reasons:

● Career Technical Education (CTE) focused on students following career pathway
education

● High-achieving students seeking additional academic and learning opportunities
● Individuals who are self-directed and choose a broader range of academic options
● At-promise successfully achieving high school graduation
● Low-achieving students requiring tailored remedial programs
● Health reasons prohibiting them from attending regular classroom programs
● Flexible scheduling because of work, familial obligations, and extracurricular activities
● Academic challenges, including credit deficient
● Family relationships, personal beliefs, and values

YCCPCS sta�f believe learning best occurs when students’ diverse learning styles, backgrounds,
and needs are recognized to develop their learning plan.We expect students to experience
challenging tasks requiring perseverance, fitness, cra�tsmanship, imagination, self-discipline,
and achievement. We ensure students are actively engaged in learning experiences integrated
across curriculum areas andmeaningful within the context of their present and future lives. We
ensure students are engaged in real-life studies, exposed to experts, and work on authentic
projects.

14
43



Instructional Setting
YCCPCS provides personalized learning options to students. A Personalized Learning Program
is a unique, blended classroom and non-classroom-based public educational model tailored to
the needs and interests of each student. Personalized learning programs are a 21st-century, “on
the leading edge” approach to public education that honors and recognizes each student's
unique gi�ts, skills, passions, programs, struggles, and attributes.

�e intent is to engage each student in the learning process, making it productive, relevant, and
meaningful.�e goal is to optimize the student’s learning potential and success.�e key
attributes that comprise the Personalized Learning Programmodel contain a solid foundation
of the latest educational research findings as to how students learn most successfully.�ese
attributes include the following:

● A strong emphasis on parental involvement
● Small class sizes
● One-on-one teacher and student interaction
● Attention to di�ferences in learning styles
● Access to technology
● Varied learning environments
● Choices in curriculum programs
● Hands-on career technical education experiences

Instructional Approaches and Strategies
By integrating various types of age-appropriate technology with the curriculum, the
instructional sta�f does not experience the traditional barriers of time, place, or availability of
learning resources. �is approach supports non-traditional students through engaging
learning opportunities. It empowers supportive adults to actively partner in students' social
development and education. In so doing, the school focuses on addressing all students' unique
learning needs and styles while providing opportunities for all students to excel.

YCCPCS o�fers the following choices of educational delivery overseen by highly qualified
California credentialed instructors:

● Individual Learning Program
● Independent Study support
● Cooperative classes
● Blended instructional strategies
● Tutoring
● Pre-CTE and CTE hands-on experiences
● Concurrent and Dual enrollment college opportunities
● Virtual classrooms

15
44



● Field trips

Independent Study (I.S.)

K-8 ProgramDescription
�e K-8 independent study program fulfills the educational needs of students enrolled in
independent study when there is a strong commitment on the part of parents/guardians to
meet their child’s academic needs as they take on the role of “teacher” at home.
Parents/Guardians must regularly:

1) Provide instruction and curriculum delivery; discuss progress and success with the
assigned supervising teacher.

2) Complete andmonitor weekly assignments and Assignment Sheets and complete work.
3) Complete required Learning Logs; check weekly grades and ensure progress towards

growth and improvement.
4) Provide opportunities for Community Service. Community Service is an essential

component of YCCPCS program requirements. Community service is a donated service
or activity students perform to benefit the public. Every student must be actively
involved, volunteering in the community for two hours per week.Weekly documentation
is required to earn hours.

5) Attend regularly scheduled appointments with the Supervising Teacher.
6) Ensure the student attends daily engagement and synchronized instruction. Students

must participate in live sessions with YCCPCS Paraeducators or Credentialed Teachers
every school day.

YCCPCS provides the followingmaterials to each enrolled student:
a) Instructional materials (text/workbooks)
b) Use of computer for home, as needed, or use of computers on-site
c) On-site individual and group tutoring
d) Evaluation of completed work
e) Support with curriculum delivery and additional resources for assignments
f) School-wide and state assessment delivery

9-12 ProgramDescription

9-12 Traditional I.S. and Cohort I.S. Students- All Students
Students follow a carefully guided course of study, including sequenced sets of lessons, with
learning objectives easily identified by parents, teachers, and students. Students complete their
assignments, which parents and teachers review. Supervising teachers are available by
telephone or the Internet to provide learning support, feedback, written responses, and

16
45



personal attention. Community-based resources o�fer options for enrichment.

Newly enrolled high school students are encouraged to attend a “Student Success” course their
first semester.�is course helps students acquire the knowledge and skills they need to succeed
as independent study students. It increases a student's mastery of academic, social, and life
skills, problem-solving, and critical thinking. YCCPCS students enroll in CTE coursework based
on personal choice, future career interests, and need for graduation credits. Field trips and
internships align with CTE coursework.

�is comprehensive description of the CTEprogram is for demonstration purposes only.Modifications
to theCTEPathwayprogramwill not constitute amaterial revision to the charter.

New students participate in a weekly CTE Introductory course. �ose who have completed an
Intro CTE course may enroll in a CTE Concentrator course. Students who have completed a
second year of study in the same CTE Pathway may enroll in a Capstone course.

Community Service is required. Community Service is a donated service or activity students
perform to benefit the public. Students must be actively involved in community service two
hours per week (30 hours per semester). Documentation is required to earn credit.

All-Day Program
Some students enroll at YCCPCS seeking structured �lexibility. YCCPCSmay provide a full-day
academic program based on the student population served.

Additional High School Opportunities

Credit byExam
Various exams are available to high school students to complete the required courses.
Accredited curriculum providers use designated exams.

Concurrent Enrollment inCollege Courses
In line with a student’s individualized learning program, students can attend local colleges for
credit. Students may participate in concurrent enrollment, allowing eligible secondary students
to complete postsecondary coursework and simultaneously earn high school and college credit.
�ese college-level courses are at community college campuses or online. Such courses can save
students time andmoney as they are o�ten exempt from paying tuition, application, and
laboratory fees. �e academic advisor arranges these opportunities.

17
46



Instructional Delivery
YCCPCS o�fers the following choices of educational delivery overseen by highly qualified
California credentialed teachers:

Option #1Digital CurriculumwithDevice
Students are issued a device at enrollment if requested and then enrolled in the school
curriculum based on the student's Individualized Learning Plan. Sta�f confirm students have
internet access and provide it when needed.�is option o�fers a computer-based education
network, which serves as the foundation for learning. Various recognized providers support a
cohesive instructional system, integrating the power of individualized computer-based
instruction with the �lexibility of online delivery.

Option #2Print-Based
Learning materials may include the traditional paper/pencil and textbook format upon request.
�e teacher and parent work with the student to develop age-appropriate learning skills.

Meeting Student Needs
YCCPCS is committed to frequent teacher-student contact with strong adult mentoring to
facilitate learning.�e followingmethods of instruction are options that foster strong
interaction between students, teachers, parents, and any other mentoring adult. Instruction
can be delivered in classrooms during formal periods of instruction, in private settings, or a
combination of both.�is model allows for the personalization of content to meet the individual
learning needs of all students.

Students Performing Far Above-BelowGrade Level/ Other Populations

Identification for Course Planning
YCCPCS uses the Renaissance STAR online assessment platform to assess student achievement
and learner needs locally and formatively. �is data identifies students performing above, on,
or below grade level immediately following submission of the assessment. In addition, students
are considered high achievers based on transcript evaluation, scores on content area
assessments, teacher observation, and quality of work. Additionally, YCCPCS registrar sta�f
review student records at enrollment to learn if a student has a 504 Plan or an Individual

18
47



Education Plan for special education. If yes, those plans are directed to the appropriate
instructional sta�f to start SELPA’s interim placement process.

Support
YCCPCS provides students with personalized options (described previously) that best meet
individual learning needs.

�e academic intervention/extension of the learning process follows a locally defined
Multi-Tiered System of Support (MTSS). Intervention plans are prepared and implemented as
part of students' Individualized Learning Plans based on local assessment data, teacher
observation, and evaluation of student work. In addition to core curriculum and supplemental
assignments, students may be assigned special projects aligning with personal interests to
support engagement and accelerate learning.

High-achieving students receive instruction beyond the standard curriculum, including project
work in their career choice or college preparation.

English Language Learners
YCCPCS is committed to high academic success for all students, including English Learners
(ELs). YCCPCS assures that all students classified as EL receive access to all academic core
content and elective courses o�fered, as appropriate by grade level. Instruction is di�ferentiated
according to each student’s language proficiency level, using evidence and research-based
instructional strategies. YCCPCS sta�f support students' self-perception, use of native
language, and social-emotional development while developing academic English language
skills.

Students enrolled for the first time in a California school are identified for primary language at
enrollment using the Home Language Survey. Students classified as EL require language
support and receive both integrated and designated English Language Development with
additional tutoring and targeted learning resources provided as needed. English Language
Learners are provided access to the core curriculum through the use of instructional and
sca�folding strategies that

● develop language within the student’s current knowledge of content area curriculum,
● develop language skills (listening, speaking, reading, and writing),
● o�fer explicit literacy instruction,

19
48



● provide peer-assisted and small-group learning opportunities,
● Provide integrated academic language support during content area instruction,

balanced with designated supports that provide structured explicit opportunities for oral
and written language skills development,

● allow for assessment in various forms (e.g., formative, benchmark, summative) to
understand and support student learning and

● support social-emotional development and identity formation.
�ese measures provide the best opportunity for students to acquire language at a rate of at
least one proficiency level each year, as measured by the English Language Proficiency
Assessments for CA (ELPAC).

SELPAMembership
YCCPCS is a member of the Yuba County SELPA under the YCOEmembership umbrella. Special
Education revenues are allocated to YCCPCS per the Yuba County SELPA’s Fiscal Allocation Plan.
As a YCOE School, YCCPCS is responsible for all special education costs exceeding revenues
from the Yuba County SELPA.�e YCOE Fiscal Department documents that all special
education funds are allocated to special education instruction or services to identified students
with disabilities. Such funds supplement and not supplant other federal, state, and local sources
apportioned to YCCPCS.

Pursuant to legal provisions of both federal and state law, eligible students enrolled in charter
schools are entitled to special education services provided in the samemanner as such services
are provided in other public schools and charter schools within the SELPA. YCCPCS follows
federal laws and regulations, including all twenty-three areas of legal assurance identified in the
Yuba County SELPA Plan.

Special Education Plan andRequired Supplemental Criteria

YCCPCS aligns services with the requirements of the Individuals with Disabilities Education
Improvement Act (IDEIA) 20 U.S.C. Section 1400 et seq., and associated regulations.

Provisions for and Compliance of Special Education Services Referral
YCCPCS will not deny enrollment of any eligible student due to a disability or the school’s
inability to procure necessary special education services. YCCPCS assumes responsibility for
compliance with Section 504 of the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA). Individuals with

20
49



exceptional needs, as defined in Education Code Section 56026, may only participate in an
independent study program if an Individualized Education Program (IEP) specifically provides
for that participation (EC51745(c)).

YCCPCS will refer students for Student Study Teams (SST) as needed to determine alternative
interventions for students demonstrating low performance.�rough this process, students,
teachers, key school personnel, or other interested persons systematically review andmake
recommendations about student performance related to:
academic progress;

● attendance
● social/emotional development;
● physical limitations; and/or,
● behavioral needs.

Students are referred for special education assessment only when their individual needs
interfere with school performance and cannot be met through accommodations within the
general education/independent study setting.

Services
YCCPCS delivers the required and appropriate special education services to enrolled students,
regardless of a student’s district of residence, unless other agreements exist between the YCOE
or Yuba County SELPA regional providers. �e school district of residence where the student
resides is not responsible for providing special education services to students enrolled at
YCCPCS.

Upon enrollment of a student with an IEP, a representative from YCCPCS sta�f meets with the
student and parent/guardian (if necessary) to review the student’s current IEP, review
transcripts, and discuss course assignments. For students with special needs who are also
English Learners, IEP goals re�lect the individual student’s linguistic objectives.

�e needs of students with disabilities are met in a number of ways, including but not limited to
● Specialized instruction and services available at YCCPCS are both direct and consulting

services by the qualified student’s IEP.
● Procedures for ensuring students are referred, assessed, and served in a timely manner

are in place.

21
50



● Assurance that sta�f members providing special education services are appropriately
credentialed.

● Assurance that the facility used by YCCPCS does not present physical barriers that would
limit an eligible student’s full participation in the educational and extracurricular
program (ADA compliant) are in place.

● Disenrollment, suspension, and expulsion policies and procedures ensure federal and
state law protections are a�forded to students receiving special education and 504
eligible students.

● Following dispute resolution procedures as outlined in the SELPA Local Plan should any
disputes between educational entities, including the SELPA, regarding the provision of
special education services at YCCPCS.

● Adhering to the legal mandates outlined in Education Code §56000 et seq., the
Individuals with Disabilities Act 20 U.S.C. Chapter 33.

● Progress monitoring through assessment of progress in meeting students’ IEP goals.
● Placement in appropriate courses with highly qualified teachers credentialed to instruct

students with special needs.
● Special modifications and/or accommodations of curriculum or instruction, as specified

in their IEP, to enable successful participation in the core curriculum.
● Collaboration between YCCPCS and the Yuba County O�fice of Education on appropriate

special education services.

InterimPlacement and Individual EducationPlan (IEP)Development
YCCPCS adheres to the legal mandates outlined in the Individuals with Disabilities Education
Improvement Act (IDEIA) in implementing regulations.

Initial andTriennial Assessments
When students are referred for an initial evaluation to determine if they meet eligibility
requirements to receive special education, YCCPCS generates a referral for special education,
monitors all legal timelines, develops an assessment plan o�fering testing in all areas of
suspected areas of need/disability; coordinate qualified personnel to provide the required
testing; generate IEPmeeting notices; develop and facilitate the IEPmeeting; and, distribute
copies of the IEP to appropriate personnel.

At least once every three years, a student is reassessed to determine their continued eligibility to

22
51



receive special education services. Following any initial or eligibility assessment, if a student has
a documented learning or related disability but does not meet other eligibility requirements for
special education, an exit meeting is held to dismiss the student from receiving special
education services via an IEP.

Identification of Bilingual Studentswith SpecialNeeds
Before a student whose native language is not English is referred for special education, their
level of English proficiency is determined to ensure their lack of acquisition of language skills is
not the reason for lower academic performance. Every attempt is made to have personnel �luent
in the student’s native language and familiar with their native culture participate during the
SST and referral, assessment, and identification processes to determine eligibility for special
education.

�e Limited English Proficiency/Fluent English Proficiency status of a student is used to
determine the language in which they are assessed when a formal referral to special education is
made.�is is documented in the assessment plan. Bilingual personnel translate during IEP
meetings and can transcribe all written documents (assessment reports, IEP forms, Parent
Rights, Procedural Safeguards, etc.) when a parent requests. All goals and objectives for
bilingual students are linguistically appropriate and are developed so that the student’s
language acquisition needs are considered.

Sta�fing, Curriculum, Service Provisions, and Student Accountability
All special education services are provided by highly qualified sta�f as outlined in the Every
Student Succeeds Act (ESSA).

All services, supplementary materials, or assistive devices required to access the core
curriculum are provided at no cost to the student. No facility utilized for special education may
present any physical barrier limiting an eligible student’s full participation in the educational or
extracurricular program.

Disenrollment, Suspension, and Expulsion
Attendance for special education services is monitored closely to ensure identified students’
access to all services as outlined in their IEP. If a student with an IEP is recognized as having
attendance issues (over ten absences), YCCPCS contacts the student/family to request an IEP

23
52



meeting. Sta�f also continuously monitors that the personalized learning model remains an
appropriate placement for the student.�e IEP teammonitors progress to ensure educational
benefits for the students. If for any reason the pupil is expelled or leaves the charter school
without graduating or completing the school year for any reason, within 30 days, YCCPCS
notifies the superintendent of the school district of the pupil's last known address. YCCPCS
shall, upon request, provide that school district with a copy of the cumulative pupil record,
including a transcript of grades or report card and health information.

Students with IEPs are disciplined in accordance with the Parent/Student Handbook and Board
policies. Students with disabilities are a�forded protections in federal law against unlawful
changes in placement. No student identified with an IEP or 504 plan is suspended for more than
ten (10) school days per calendar year or recommended for expulsion without a Manifestation
Determination meeting to determine if their misconduct is a manifestation of their disability.
In accordance with Assembly Bill 1360, if expulsion is necessary, a school psychologist or
Administrator is involved in all phases of expulsion proceedings. Parents/students are provided
with due process rights throughout. In cases where suspension (beyond ten days per year) or
expulsion is recommended following the Manifestation DeterminationMeeting.

Maintenance of Special Education Records
YCCPCSmaintains all students’ special education files using appropriate forms/so�tware and
files reports as necessary to maintain legal compliance. YCCPCS verifies the accuracy of all
reports and submits them in a timely manner as required by the Yuba County SELPA.

Special Education Funding
As a YCOE School, YCCPCS is responsible for all special education costs in excess of revenues
received from the Yuba County SELPA.�e YCOE Fiscal Department documents that all special
education funds are used to provide special education instruction and/or services to identified
students with disabilities. Such funds supplement and not supplant other federal, state, and
local sources apportioned to YCCPCS.

Parent/Guardian Concerns/Complaints
Parent/guardian concerns regarding special education services are directed to the YCCPCS
administration. YCCPCS administration and sta�f address the concerns of the parent/guardian.
YCCPCS addresses, responds to, investigates, and takes all necessary action to respond and

24
53



attend to all complaints involving special education and IDEIA compliance. YCCPCSmay
initiate a due process hearing concerning an enrolled student as the Charter determines it is
legally necessary to meet YCCPCS’s responsibilities under federal and state law. If the
parent/guardian files for a due process hearing, YCCPCS is responsible for proceedings,
including any costs and fees.

Section 504 and AmericanswithDisability Act (ADA)
YCCPCS recognizes its legal responsibility as a public school of the YCOE to ensure that no
qualified person with a disability is excluded from participation, denied the benefits of, or
otherwise subjected to discrimination in any school program based on their disability. Any
student with an objectively identified disability that substantially limits a major life activity,
such as learning, is eligible for accommodation at YCCPCS within the requirements of the ADA.
YCCPCS utilizes its Student Success Team process to guide the referral of students for
evaluation under Section 504 or the Individuals with Disabilities Education Improvement Act
(IDEIA). Once a student is recognized as eligible for accommodations under this provision, a
team is established and develops an annual 504 plan for the student.

Professional Learning
YCCPCS has a robust professional development schedule that includes instructional technology.
In addition to administrator-identified professional learning needs, YCCPCS sta�f are surveyed
annually to identify self-determined professional development needs.

Annual Goal and State Priority Alignment
Refer to Element II for information on goals, actions, and outcomes.

Charter Schools ServingHigh School Students

Graduation Requirements
YCCPCS intends to see students progress through each grade level within one school year,
demonstrate expected levels of learning growth, andmeet grade-level standards for student
achievement.

25
54



Progress towards high school graduation shall be based upon the student’s ability to pass the
subjects and electives necessary to earn the required number of 220 credits for high school
graduation:

● 40 Credits of English
● 30 Credits of Mathematics (to include IntegratedMath 1)
● 20 Credits of Science (must include life science)
● 30 Credits of Social Sciences (includesWorld History, US History, Civics, and

Economics)
● 10 Credits of Foreign Language/Fine Arts
● 10 Credits of Career Exploration
● 5 Credits of Vocational Education
● 20 Credits of Physical Education
● 5 Credits of Health Education
● 50 Credits of Electives (Can include community service)

FAFSA/ CADreamAct
In addition, the FAFSA/CA Dream Act Application during students’ Senior year is a requirement
for YCCPCS graduation. To increase access to financial aid, California enacted legislation
(Assembly Bill 469) requiring local educational agencies, including charter schools, to confirm
that all high school seniors have completed a Free Federal Student Aid or a CA Dream Act
Application. Annually, YCCPCS sta�f schedule time on campus to support students with
completing and submitting applications by the state aid deadline.

Homeless andUnaccompanied Youth
YCCPCS aligns with AB 1806 for homeless and unaccompanied youth, AB 216 for Foster Youth,
and AB 2306 for youth who have been incarcerated, attended a court school, andmeet eligibility
requirements.�ese bills provide for reduced credits required to earn a high school diploma.
Under AB 1806, AB 216, and AB 2306, the requirements for English are reduced from 40 to 30,
and Health and elective requirements are removed, reducing the total credits needed to
graduate to 130.

Alternative Pathways toHigh School Completion
YCCPCS recognizes that the prescribed course of study may not accommodate the needs of
some students and follows policy when determining alternative pathways to high school
completion.

Transferability of Courses &Course Eligibility for College Entrance Requirements
YCCPCS complies with the requirement to inform parents about the transferability of courses to

26
55



other public high schools and the eligibility of courses to meet college entrance requirements.
Sta�f accomplish this through parent orientation and/or meetings and through our school’s
accompanying student/parent handbook, which is provided to each family.

Element II: Measurable Pupil Outcomes
Pupil OutcomeAlignment
YCCPCS shall submit the LCAP to YCOE annually on or before July 1, as required by Education
Code Section 47604.33. �e LCAP and any revisions necessary to implement the LCAP shall not
be considered a material revision to the YCCPCS charter.

In keeping with these broad principles, as specified in the California State Standards, the
following goals, actions, metrics, state priorities, and outcomes have been aligned with LCAP/
WASC plans and with student outcomes described in Education Code section 52060(d).

Goals, Actions,Metrics, andOutcomes
YCCPCS has established broad goals that re�lect the needs of the enrolled student population.
YCCPCS reserves the right to use information gathered for the LCAP/WASC annual needs
assessment to amend goals, metrics, and outcomes throughout the charter term.

27
56



YCCPCSAligned Plans

BroadGoal Description

1 Operationalize interventions/supports to keep all students and families engaged, learning, and
achieving through graduation and on to students’ college/career pathway.

Broad Actions Description

1.1 Increase student/ family engagement and connectedness to school by improving
systems that support

a. student/parent access to and use of tools and resources
b. activities and events
c. communication
d. school climate and culture
e. inclusion of educational partners as decision-makers
f. ongoing progress monitoring of schoolwide goals and actions

1.2 Articulate and implement procedures to sustain Tier 1 – Tier 3 individualized
support for academic, social-emotional, and behavioral student needs by

a. early identification of student needs andmatching appropriate supports
b. increasing attendance for onsite/remote supports, including counseling

with attendance tracking to support progress monitoring of
implementation and e�fectiveness

c. referencing and fully implementing the YCCPCSMTSS framework
d. reviewing, revising, and improving the SST process

1.3 Articulate and implement college/career pathways procedures, and develop support
systems, including

a. completing graduation/transition plans
b. promoting attendance at college/career exploration activities
c. increasing student/family engagement and connectedness with community

agencies/partners providing interventions related to substance use, mental
health, and college/career transitions

1.4 Maintain adequate resources and sta�fing to provide a multi-tiered system of
support, including social, emotional, andmental health coaching and referrals.

Metrics State Priorities Outcomes

28
57



% of students with su�ficient
standards-alignedmaterials
Source: Local Inventory

Priority 1b 100% of students with access to their own copies of
standards-aligned instructional materials for use at school and
at home

Annual parent input
satisfaction/participation
Parent participation
Source: Local Surveys & Tracking

Priority 3a/3b 85%+ parent/guardian survey satisfaction with greater than
50% participation
increases in involvement through volunteering,
decision-making, or schoolwide events.

Annual Facility Inspection
Source: Facility Inspection Tool
(FIT)

Priority 1c 0 instances where facilities do not meet at least “good repair”

% completion a-g requirements
% CTE Completers
% of students completing a-g
and at least one Pathway

Source: CADashboard Additional
Reports

Priority 4b-4d Overall
>0% of students will complete
a-g requirements
>25% of students will
complete CTE pathways
>1% of students will complete
a-g and at least one Pathway

Student Groups
Low income: within 5% of
overall
Disabilities: within 5% of overall
Hispanic: within 5% of overall
White: within 5% of overall

Attendance %
Source: SIS/DataQuest

Priority 5a Overall
At least a 90% attendance rate

Student Groups
Low income: within 5% of
overall
Disabilities: within5% of overall
Hispanic: within5% of overall
White: within 5% of overall

4/5-year graduation rate
Source: CADashboard

Priority 5e Overall
Maintain a target 4/5-year
graduation rate of >75%.

Student Groups
Low-income: close gap by same
% as overall
Disabilities: close gap by same
% as overall
Hispanic: close gap by same %
as overall
White: close gap by same % as
overall

Broad Course of Study
Percentage of 6-12 students
with access to a broad course of
study

Priority 7a Overall
100% of enrolled students will have access to a broad course of
study.

29
58



Source: SIS

Programs and services for
unduplicated students and
students with IEPs
Source: SIS/Local tracking

Priority 7b/7c 100% of students classified as unduplicated or students with
special needs will have access to all programs and services
o�fered to enrolled YCCPCS students as measured by the UCP.

Climate Screener
Source: Locally Tracked CoVitality

Priority 6c Of students participating, >85% will be classified as ‘getting by,’
‘moderate thriving,’ or ‘high thriving’ on the CoVitality
Screener.

Baseline established Fall 2023: 58%

DASSAlternativeMetrics

1-year cohort grad rate
Source: CADashboard

Priority 8 Overall
Maintain a target 1-year
graduation/ equivalency rate
of >80%.

Student Groups
Low-income: close gap by same
% as overall
Disabilities: close gap by same
% as overall
Hispanic: close gap by same %
as overall
White: close gap by same % as
overall

Number of students
completing college courses
Source: SIS Query/ Report

Priority 8 >30 students successfully
completing Concurrent
Enrollment, Dual
Enrollment, or articulated
courses

Student Groups
Low income: within 5% of other
groups
Disabilities: within 5% of other
groups
Hispanic: within 5% of other
groups
White: within 5% of other
groups

% of high school students
completing grad plans
Source: SIS (Academic Planner)
locally tracked

Priority 8 100% of students will meet with and complete a graduation
plan with an academic advisor within the first year of
enrollment.

30
59



Broad Goal Description

2 Increase educators' capacity to support all students in engagement, learning, and achievement.

Broad Actions Description

2.1 Provide whole group structured sta�f professional learning
a. PLC time to support continuous improvement
b. using research/evidence-based instructional and SEL practices
c. pedagogy/ instruction focusing on practices specific to alternative

education, independent study, and CTE
d. ongoing development of a Multi-Tiered System of Support

2.2 Support continuous improvement e�forts by
a. monitoring professional learning needs and implementation
b. monitoring goal and action implementation, and e�fectiveness
c. monitoring student outcomes and other program data
d. looking to other models/programs to determine how practices are

implemented

2.3 By Fall 2026, strive to implement grade level and/or content area PLCs a site level
leadership team

Metrics State Priorities Outcomes

% of appropriately assigned and
credentialed teachers
Source: CALSASS

Priority 1a 100% of teachers are appropriately assigned and credentialed

State standards
implementation
EL access to State and ELD
standards
Source: LI Self-Re�lection Tool

Priority 2a/2b On a 5-point self-re�lection tool maintain at least a 4 (80%).

% of students proficient on
CAASPP ELA
% of students proficient on
CAASPPmath
Source: DataQuest/ CDE Test
Results

Priority 4a Overall ELA: At least 30%
proficient
Overall math:At least 10%
proficient

Student Groups
Low income: within 5% of other
groups
Disabilities: within 10% of other
groups
Hispanic: within 5% of other
groups

31
60



White: within 5% of other
groups

% of EL students making at
least one year’s progress
% reclassified ELs
Source: CADashboard ELPI &
DataQuest

Priority 4e/4f 0% of ELs will make at least one year’s progress toward English
proficiency.
Maintain a reclassification rate of at least 1%

College ELA andmath
Preparedness (EAP)
Source: DataQuest 11th gr test
results

Priority 4g/4h >25% of students will be Conditionally Ready or Ready for
college-level ELA courses
>5% of students will be Conditionally Ready or Ready for
college-level math courses
College placement assessments are not applicable to DASS
schools

Chronic absentee %
Source: SIS/DataQuest

Priority 5b <15% chronic absenteeism
White: within 5% of overall

Middle school dropout rates
High school dropout rates
Source: DataQuest

Priority 5c/5d Overall
Middle school dropout 0%
High school dropout <15 %

Student Groups
Low income: within 5% of
overall
Disabilities: within 5% of overall
Hispanic: within 5% of overall
White: within 5% of overall

Suspension Rate
Source: DataQuest

Priority 6b Maintain > 1% suspension rate and 0% expulsion rate

DASSAlternativeMetrics

Credit Completion
Source: SIS Query/ Report

Priority 8 Overall: Students will
complete a minimum of 25
HS credits on average each
semester

Student Groups
Low-income: within 5% of other
groups
Disabilities: within 5% of other
groups
Hispanic: within 5% of other
groups
White: within 5% of other
groups

Annual sta�f PD survey results
Source: Locally tracked

Priority 8 100% of teachers will be surveyed to determine their
professional learning needs.

32
61



% of students making one year’s
growth on the local assessment
in ELA and Math
Source: Locally tracked online
platform

Priority 8 Overall Reading: At least 60%
making one year’s growth in
ELA

Overall Math: At least 40%
making one year’s growth in
Math

Student Groups
Low income: within 5% of
overall
Disabilities: within 10% of
overall
Hispanic: within 5% of overall
White: within 5% of overall

% professional development
attendance & implementation
Source: Locally Tracked

Priority 8 100% of school sta�f trained on SEL/ Trauma-Informed
practices and > 75% implementation.

Element III: Student ProgressMeasurement

YCCPCS believes at-promise students deserve a rigorous and supportive learning environment,
so sta�f utilize several measures of progress to ensure students are achieving academically and
are prepared for college and/or career opportunities. YCCPCS’s choice of methods to assess
pupil progress is based on the following beliefs about assessment:

1. To have a complete picture of a student's growth, di�ferent types of assessments must be
used.

2. Assessments should focus on a student's growth towards a proficiency standard rather
than comparing a student's performance against other students.

3. �ere should be a close relationship between a desired student outcome and the means
used to assess it.

4. Assessing what students do with knowledge is as important as assessing what
knowledge they have.

5. Assessment should promote and support re�lection and self-evaluation on the part of
students, sta�f, and parents.

Local Assessments
● Teachers regularly use standards-aligned formative and summative assessments

(publisher and teacher-designed) in their individual courses (quizzes, tests,
performance tasks, demonstrations, projects, and exhibitions).

33
62



● �eRenaissance STAR assessment measures student progress toward reading andmath
standards. �is adaptive assessment tool is administered multiple times throughout the
year. Data is analyzed regularly throughout the year to analyze student growth,
determine needs, and guide curricular and instructional strategies.

State Assessments
YCCPCSmeets all statewide assessment requirements pursuant to Education Code Sections
60605 and 60851 and any other assessment requirements applicable to students in non-charter
public schools, as required by Education Code Section 47605(c)(1). State assessments provide
parents/guardians, teachers, and educators with information about how well students learn and
become college and career-ready.�e test results may be used for local, state, and federal
accountability purposes, including using the CA Dashboard data as one indicator to renew its
charter every five years.

AssessmentMethods
While all students must achieve the required standards to graduate, not all progress
simultaneously. Progress is evaluated based on individual abilities, interests, and talents.

In addition to the measurements mentioned above, methods by which student progress is
assessed will be through a variety of the following:

● Weekly review of work
● Annual portfolios (minimum of 2 work samples per subject area per semester)
● STAR Renaissance 3-4 times a year in English Language Arts andMathematics
● Parent and teacher observation
● Criterion-referenced assessment aligned with the California State Standards
● Student grades and credit completion
● Student demonstrations
● Participation in enrichment activities (field trips, guest speakers)
● CTE pathway completers

Local assessment data is disaggregated, tracked, analyzed, and used for instructional and site
plan decision-making.

34
63



Element IV: Location of Each Proposed
Charter School Facility

YCCPCS is located at 1104 E Street, Marysville, California, 95901.

�e facility accommodates a personalized learning program. It provides enough space for
teacher preparation for individual student-teacher meetings and on-site preparation and
implementation of supplemental support, including, but not limited to tutoring group
instruction, and CTE classrooms.

Element V: Governance Structure
Legal Organization of the School
Yuba County Career Preparatory Charter School (YCCPCS) is a public charter school authorized
by the Yuba County Board of Education and administered by the Yuba County Superintendent
of Schools through the Yuba County O�fice of Education (YCOE).

Governance
�eYubaCountyBoard of Education's Role as theCharterGoverningBoard
�e Yuba County Board of Education (YCBE) is the Governing Board for YCCPCS. It retains roles
and responsibilities as the governing board of YCCPCS as defined in Education Code 1040 –
1047. YCBE is responsible for, but not limited to, approving YCCPCS’s annual budget, adopting
the annual LCAP and core curriculum, and acquiring real property for housing programs and
services.

�eYubaCountyBoard of Education's Role as theAuthorizingAgency
As the authorizing agency, YCBE is responsible for fulfilling its statutory oversight
responsibilities as required by law, including the duties identified in Education Code Section
47604.32.�e YCBE is accountable for reviewing and acting on requests for charter petition
renewal andmaterial revisions and has the authority to initiate revocation proceedings, if
necessary, as provided by Education Code Section 47607.

Role of the Yuba County O�fice of Education

35
64



�e YCOE provides direct oversight of the charter school on behalf of the YCBE.

YCOEmaintains an agreement with the YCCPCS, which provides business and administrative,
personnel, accounting, payroll, budget development and support, maintenance, operations,
and Special Education services for YCCPCS. YCOE is also responsible for supporting the
acquisition of real property for housing programs and services and setting andmonitoring the
implementation and e�fectiveness of long-term goals and student progress.

Con�lict of Interest Statement
�e YCBE and the YCOE fully comply with con�lict-of-interest regulations of the Political Reform Act
Government Code Section 1090.

Role of the Charter Advisory Council (CAC)
Parent and community involvement in operating YCCPCS is integral to ensuring the school
program addresses the needs, concerns, and expectations of the students, families, and
communities of students served as defined in Education Code 47605(c)(5)(D).

As outlined in the Bylaws, the CAC has not less than five members: the school administrator,
two (2) sta�f members, one (1) student, and up to three (3) parents/community members that
re�lect the demographic population served.�e CAC is the advisory body for charter school
business and any mandated partner input, e.g., the LCAP educational partner group.�e CAC
will meet publicly no less than four times annually and:

● supports the development of site plan (LCAP, Charter, WASC, grant) goals, actions,
and expenditures, including those related to family and community engagement

● at a minimum, biannually evaluate the progress made toward school goals to raise
the academic achievement of all students

● provides ongoing data-driven review of the implementation and e�fectiveness of the
school site plan(s)

● provides recommendations onmodifications to the site plan(s) to the Yuba County Board
of Education for approval whenever a material change in planned activities or related
expenditures is needed to address the identified needs

● provides site plan goals, actions, and expenditure recommendations to the YCBE
● follows procedures for material changes to plans whenever the need arises
● carries out all other duties assigned to the CAC by the YCBE, the County

Superintendent, or a designee and by state law
● reviews and approves any applicable expenditures in accordance with state and federal

laws and regulations
● provides input on general school issues and other charter school interests and activities.

36
65



● provides input on opportunities for educational partner engagement and schoolwide
events.

�e CAC complies with the provisions of the Greene Act.

�e recruitment of advisory council members occurs in multiple formats, including the
beginning of the school year publications, back-to-school night, website, campus, community
posting, and personal conversations. Detailed bylaws are available in the Appendix.

Role of Site Leadership
�e program's overall vision is supported by YCOE under the direction of the County
Superintendent, with instructional leadership and oversight of the day-to-day operations
provided by the school Director and Operations Administrator.

�is administrative team:
• Makes recommendations for the hiring of sta�f;
• Evaluates sta�f;
• Enlists parent and sta�f involvement;
• Administers and oversees student activities;
• Monitors the implementation of curriculum;
• Implements school policies;
• Works with the C & I Director to select or pilot instructional materials;
• Recruit community and business partners;
• Collaborates and develops partnerships with Yuba County One Stop
• Participates in school/community a�fairs;
• Promotes professional and academic excellence;
• Provide plan, organize, and direct Special Education programs;
• Manages technology programs;
• Administers budgets and other related fiscal responsibilities;
• Assures regular school/home communication; and,
• Resolves personnel and student issues.

Element VI: Qualifications for Employment
YCCPCS follows the approved and public organizational chart of YCOE. YCOE is deemed the

37
66



exclusive public-school employer of YCCPCS employees for purposes of the Educational
Employment Relations Act as described in Education Code Section 47605(b).

Sta�f Qualifications for Employment
Student achievement increases in schools where teaching and learning have the highest
priority, and students achieve at higher levels when taught by teachers who know their subject
matter and are skilled in teaching it. YCCPCS strives to ensure all instructional sta�f, including
certificated teachers and classified instructional paraprofessionals, are highly- qualified and
compliant with federal ESSA requirements.

Qualifications of all certificated or non-certificated employees recruited and hired at YCCPCS
follow YCOE hiring practices. Employees hired to provide instruction, supplementary
instruction, management, and support services are established and defined in YCOE job
descriptions.

Evaluation Process
Employees are evaluated by procedures established in YCOE Board Policy and bargaining unit
agreements as appropriate for each position. Coaching is an integral part of supervision.

Other Learning Support Providers
Classroom or parent volunteers, speakers, outside experts, and others may support student
learning andmay volunteer their services, be paid as independent contractors, or be hired as
YCOE employees in accordance with Board Policy.

Element VII: Health and Safety Procedures

Health and Safety Procedures
YCCPCS follows the health and safety procedures of the YCOE in alignment with Board Policy
andmaintains a Comprehensive School Safety Plan used as a training and reference guide for
use in emergencies.�is plan is reviewed and updated annually by YCOE’s Advisory Council and
Deputy Superintendent to ensure school safety and security.

38
67



YCCPCS follows the requirements of Education Code 47605(b)(5)(F) pursuant to the CA Charter
Schools Act. �e school's CAC reviews the School Safety Plan annually by March 1. YCCPCS
presents the safety plan to the YCOE each year. �e plan is reviewed with the sta�f.

�e components of the plan meet or exceed requirements established in Ed Code
32282(a)(2)(A)-(L). �e plan includes appropriate strategies and programs that will provide or
maintain a high level of school safety and address the school’s procedures for complying with
existing laws related to school safety.

Emergency Evacuation Drill logs are kept in the administrative o�fice. �e Catapult system is
used for communication during emergencies.

Facilities
�e facility meets the requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act. It does not present
physical barriers that would limit an eligible student's full participation in educational and
extracurricular programs o�fered.

YCOE’s Maintenance and Operations division annually conducts a school facility inspection
using the Facility Inspection Tool (FIT). YCCPCS administration reviews the FIT report with the
YCOE Director of Maintenance of Operations and collaborates on facility repairs and
improvements.

Element VIII: Achieving a Racial and Ethnic Balance
Among Students

YCCPCS intends to achieve a racial and ethnic balance among the charter school’s students that
is re�lective of the general population residing within the territorial jurisdiction of the YCOE:

● development of promotional and informational materials that appeal to various racial
and ethnic groups represented in the school community, including translation of all
materials into languages re�lective of the school community

● inclusion of YCCPCS on the list of school programs o�fered by YCOE
● distribution of promotional and informational materials via the school site and website,

the YCOE website, and community groups and partner agencies that serve the various
racial, ethnic, and interest groups re�lective of the school community

39
68



○ Promotional materials state the charter school will serve ALL students
● enrollment process that removes barriers and intentionally allows enrollment for all

student groups
● scheduling outreach meetings to reach prospective students and parents
● assigning sta�f to support and align the recruitment and enrollment processes

Element IX: Annual Independent Financial Audits &
Impact Statement

Independent Annual Audit
YCCPCS will be audited annually at the same time as YCOE performs its audit process.�e
audit verifies the accuracy of the school’s financial statements, revenue-related data collection
reporting practices, attendance and enrollment accounting, and internal controls.

YCOE Fiscal Services is responsible for contracting with an independent auditor and overseeing
the audit process.�e auditor will have, at a minimum, a CPA and educational institution audit
experience and be approved by the State Controller on its published list as an educational audit
provider to conduct the audit in accordance with Generally Accepted Auditing Standards and
the Audit Guide issued by the Controller of the State of California. To the extent required under
applicable federal law, the audit scope will be expanded to include items and processes specified
in applicable O�fice of Management and Budget Circulars.�e TK-12 public school guidelines
for Independent Study will be evident in the annual audit as per Education code 47612.5(b).

�e audit will be conducted in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. On or
before December 15, YCOE Fiscal Services will forward a copy of the annual independent
financial audit report for the prior fiscal year will be forwarded to the YCBE, the County
Superintendent of Schools, the State Controller, and the State Department of Education. Audit
exceptions may be resolved by this time.

�e YCOE Director of Fiscal Services will review any audit exceptions and, with input from the
Superintendent, will provide recommendations for resolutions. YCCPCS and the YCOE fiscal
teamwill work collaboratively to resolve any remaining audit exceptions to the satisfaction of
the Yuba County Superintendent of Schools before reporting to the YCBE. Audit appeals or
requests for summary review shall be submitted to the Education Audit Appeals Panel (EAAP) in
accordance with applicable law.

40
69



Civil Liability
YCCPCS is a YCOE school with the same civil liability impact on the organization as any other
YCOE school or program.�ere will be a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between the
YCOE and YCCPCS.

Element X: Suspension and Expulsion Procedures
In keeping with relevant laws protecting students' constitutional rights, YCCPCS follows YCOE
policy and procedures for student suspension and expulsion. A policy may need to be amended
occasionally, but it will not require an amendment to the charter if the amendments comply
with legal requirements.

Discipline includes but is not limited to advising and counseling students, conferring with
parents/ guardians, using positive/restorative practices, using alternative educational
environments, suspension, and expulsion. School sta�f shall enforce disciplinary rules and
procedures fairly and consistently among all students. Each school employee must enforce the
school rules on student discipline and communicate rules to students in an age-appropriate
manner.�e school maintains student discipline procedures detailing expectations for
appropriate behavior and communicates these expectations in the handbook. As part of the data
confirmation process, students and their parents/guardians must verify in writing that they
have reviewed and understand these procedures.

While YCCPCS uses a Multi-Tiered System of Support to implement proactive interventions/
support and strives to implement alternatives to traditional punitive disciplinary actions, there
may be times when a student(s) may need to be suspended or expelled for any reasons
enumerated in California Education Code 48900-48915, and in the YCBE Policies and
Administrative Regulations.

Due Process
YCCPCS follows procedures established in the Board Policies and Administrative Regulations.
Depending on the length of the suspension, or if seeking expulsion, the student will receive
“oral or written notice of the charges against them,” “an explanation of the evidence that
supports the charges, and an opportunity for the pupil to present his or her side of the story,” or

41
70



“a hearing adjudicated by a neutral o�ficer within a reasonable number of days at which the
pupil has a fair opportunity to present testimony, evidence, and witnesses and confront and
cross-examine adverse witnesses, and at which the pupil has the right to bring legal counsel or
an advocate.”

For any non-voluntary removal, the student’s parent or guardian receives written notice of
intent to remove the pupil no less than five (5) school days in advance.�e parent/guardian will
have the right to challenge the non-voluntary removal under the same procedures as an
expulsion.

YCCPCS shall not involuntarily remove a student for any reason unless the parent or guardian of
the pupil received written notice, and that ensures the written notice is in the native language of
the pupil or the pupil’s parent or guardian.

Suspension
Suspensions of 1-5 days shall be initiated according to the following procedures:

Conference
Suspension shall be preceded, if possible, by a conference conducted by the Director or the
Director's designee.�e conference will include the student, his or her parent, and the teacher,
supervisor, or school employee who referred the student to the Director.

�e conference may be omitted if the Director or designee determines that an emergency
situation exists. An “emergency situation” involves a clear and present danger to the lives, safety,
or health of students or YCCPCS personnel. If a student is suspended without this conference,
both the parent/guardian and the student shall be notified of the student's right to return to
school for a conference.

At the conference, the pupil shall be informed of the reason for the disciplinary action and the
evidence against him or her and shall be allowed to present his or her version and evidence in
his or her defense in accordance with Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(J)(i). �is conference
shall be held within two (2) school days unless the pupil waives this right or is physically unable
to attend for any reason, including, but not limited to, incarceration or hospitalization. No
penalties may be imposed on a pupil for the failure of the pupil's parent or guardian to attend a
conference with School o�ficials. Reinstatement of the suspended pupil shall not be contingent
upon attendance by the pupil's parent or guardian at the conference.

42
71



Notice to Parents/Guardians
At the time of the suspension, the Director or designee shall make a reasonable e�fort to contact
the parent/guardian by telephone or in person.Whenever a student is suspended, the
parent/guardian shall be notified in writing of the suspension and the date of return following
the suspension. �is notice shall state the specific o�fense committed by the student. In
addition, the notice may also state the date and time when the student may return to school. If
School o�ficials wish to ask the parent/guardian to confer regarding matters pertinent to the
suspension, the notice may request that the parent/guardian respond to such requests without
delay.

Suspension Time Limits/Recommendation for Placement/Expulsion
When not including a recommendation for expulsion, suspensions shall not exceed five (5)
consecutive school days per suspension. Upon a recommendation of expulsion by the Director
or Director’s designee, the pupil and the pupil's guardian or representative will be invited to a
conference to determine if the suspension for the pupil should be extended pending an
expulsion hearing. In such instances when the school has determined a suspension period shall
be extended, such extension shall be made only a�ter a conference is held with the pupil or the
pupil’s parents unless the pupil and the pupil’s parents fail to attend the conference.

�e Director or designee will make this determination upon either of the following
determinations:

1. the pupil's presence will be disruptive to the education process or
2. the pupil poses a threat or danger to others.

Homework Assignments During Suspension
In accordance with Education Code Section 47606.2(a), upon the request of a parent, a legal
guardian, or another person holding the right to make education decisions for the student or
the a�fected student, a teacher shall provide to a student in any of grades 1 to 8, inclusive, who
has been suspended from school for two (2) or more school days, the homework that the student
would otherwise have been assigned.

In accordance with Education Code Section 47606.2(b), if a homework assignment that is
requested pursuant to Section 47606.2(a) and turned in to the teacher by the student either

43
72



upon the student’s return to school from suspension or within the timeframe originally
prescribed by the teacher, whichever is later, is not graded before the end of the academic term,
that assignment shall not be included in the calculation of the student’s overall grade in the
class.

A teacher may suspend any student from his or her class for the day of and the day following any
act enumerated in Education Code Section 48900.

�e Director may use their discretion to provide alternatives to suspension or expulsion to
address student misconduct pursuant to Education Code Sections 48900(v) & 48900.5.

For suspensions of fewer than ten (10) days, the Director will provide oral or written notice of
the charges against the pupil, and if the pupil denies the charges, an explanation of the evidence
that supports the charges and an opportunity for the pupil to present their side of the story.

For suspensions of 10 days or more and all other expulsions for disciplinary reasons, the
Director will provide the student and parent/guardian with timely, written notice of the charges
against the pupil and an explanation of the pupil’s fundamental rights.

Existing dispute resolution procedures outlined in the SELPA apply to any disputes that may
occur within educational entities regarding the provision of special education services in
YCCPCS.�e County Board of Education serves as the board of last appeal.

Discretionary SuspensionO�fenses
Students may be suspended for any of the following acts when it is determined the pupil:

a) Caused, attempted to cause, or threatened to cause physical injury to another person.
b) Willfully used force or violence upon the person of another, except self-defense.
c) Unlawfully possessed, used, sold, or otherwise furnished, or was under the in�luence of

any controlled substance, as defined in Health and Safety Code Sections 11053-11058,
alcoholic beverage, or intoxicant of any kind.

d) Unlawfully o�fered, arranged, or negotiated to sell any controlled substance as defined in
Health and Safety Code Sections 11053-11058, alcoholic beverage, or intoxicant of any
kind, and then sold, delivered or otherwise furnished to any person another liquid
substance or material and represented same as a controlled substance, alcoholic
beverage or intoxicant.

e) Committed or attempted to commit robbery or extortion.

44
73



f) Caused or attempted to cause damage to school property or private property, which
includes but is not limited to, electronic files and databases.

g) Stole or attempted to steal school property or private property, which includes, but is not
limited to, electronic files and databases.

h) Possessed or used tobacco or products containing tobacco or nicotine products,
including but not limited to cigars, cigarettes, miniature cigars, clove cigarettes,
smokeless tobacco, snu�f, chew packets, and betel. �is section does not prohibit the use
of their own prescription products by a pupil.

i) Committed an obscene act or engaged in habitual profanity or vulgarity.
j) Unlawfully possessed or unlawfully o�fered, arranged, or negotiated to sell any drug

paraphernalia, as defined in Health and Safety Code Section 11014.5.
k) Knowingly received stolen school property or private property, which includes but is not

limited to electronic files and databases.
l) Possessed an imitation firearm, i.e., a replica of a firearm that is so substantially similar

in physical properties to an existing firearm as to lead a reasonable person to conclude
that the replica is a firearm.

m) Harassed, threatened, or intimidated a student who is a complaining witness or witness
in a school disciplinary proceeding for the purpose of preventing that student from
being a witness and/or retaliating against that student for being a witness.

n) Unlawfully o�fered, arranged to sell, negotiated to sell, or sold the prescription drug
Soma.

o) Engaged in or attempted to engage in hazing. For the purposes of this subdivision,
“hazing” means a method of initiation or preinitiation into a pupil organization or body,
whether or not the organization or body is o�ficially recognized by an educational
institution, which is likely to cause serious bodily injury or personal degradation or
disgrace resulting in physical or mental harm to a former, current, or prospective pupil.
For purposes of this section, “hazing” does not include athletic events or
school-sanctioned events.

p) Made terroristic threats against school o�ficials and/or school property, which include,
but is not limited to, electronic files and databases. For purposes of this section,
“terroristic threat” shall include any statement, whether written or oral, by a person who
willfully threatens to commit a crime which will result in death, great bodily injury to
another person, or property damage in excess of one thousand dollars ($1,000), with the
specific intent that the statement is to be taken as a threat, even if there is no intent of

45
74



actually carrying it out, which, on its face and under the circumstances in which it is
made, is so unequivocal, unconditional, immediate, and specific as to convey to the
person threatened, a gravity of purpose and an immediate prospect of execution of the
threat, and thereby causes that person reasonably to be in sustained fear for his or her
own safety or for his or her immediate family’s safety, or for the protection of school
property, which includes but is not limited to, electronic files and databases, or the
personal property of the person threatened or his or her immediate family.

q) Committed sexual harassment, as defined in Education Code Section 212.5. For the
purposes of this section, the conduct described in Section 212.5 must be considered by a
reasonable person of the same gender as the victim to be su�ficiently severe or pervasive
to have a negative impact upon the individual’s academic performance or to create an
intimidating, hostile, or o�fensive educational environment.�is section shall apply to
pupils in any of grades 4 to 12, inclusive.

r) Caused, attempted to cause, threatened to cause or participated in an act of hate
violence, as defined in subdivision (e) of Section 233 of the Education Code. �is section
shall apply to pupils in any of grades 4 to 12, inclusive.

s) Intentionally harassed, threatened, or intimidated school personnel or volunteers
and/or a student or group of students to the extent of having the actual and reasonably
expected e�fect of materially disrupting classwork, creating substantial disorder, and
invading the rights of either school personnel or volunteers and/or student(s) by
creating an intimidating or hostile educational environment.�is section shall apply to
pupils in any of grades 4 to 12, inclusive.

t) Engaged in an act of bullying, including, but not limited to, bullying committed by
means of an electronic act.

i) “Bullying” means any severe or pervasive physical or verbal act or conduct,
including communications made in writing or by means of an electronic act, and
including one or more acts committed by a student or group of students which
would be deemed hate violence or harassment, threats, or intimidation, which
are directed toward one or more students that has or can be reasonably predicted
to have the e�fect of one or more of the following:

1) Placing a reasonable student (defined as a student, including, but is not
limited to, a student with exceptional needs, who exercises average care,
skill, and judgment in conduct for a person of his or her age, or for a
person of his or her age with exceptional needs) or students in fear of

46
75



harm to that student’s or those students’ person or property.
2) Causing a reasonable student to experience a substantially detrimental

e�fect on their physical or mental health.
3) Causing a reasonable student to experience substantial interference with

academic performance.
4) Causing a reasonable student to experience substantial interference with

his or her ability to participate in or benefit from the services, activities,
or privileges provided by the Charter School.

ii) “Electronic Act” means the creation or transmission originated on or o�f the
school site by means of an electronic device, including, but not limited to, a
telephone, wireless telephone, or other wireless communication device,
computer, or pager, of a communication, including, but not limited to, any of the
following:

1) Amessage, text, sound, video, or image.
2) A post on a social network InternetWeb site including, but not limited to:

(a) Posting to or creating a burn page. A “burn page” means an
InternetWeb site created for the purpose of having one or more of
the e�fects as listed in subparagraph (1) above.

(b) Creating a credible impersonation of another actual pupil for the
purpose of having one or more of the e�fects listed in
subparagraph (1) above. “Credible impersonation” means to
knowingly and without consent impersonate a pupil for the
purpose of bullying the pupil and such that another pupil would
reasonably believe, or has reasonably believed, that the pupil was
or is the pupil who was impersonated.

(c) Creating a false profile for the purpose of having one or more of
the e�fects listed in subparagraph (1) above. “False profile” means a
profile of a fictitious pupil or a profile using the likeness or
attributes of an actual pupil other than the pupil who created the
false profile.

3) An act of cyber sexual bullying.
(a) For purposes of this clause, “cyber sexual bullying” means the

dissemination of, or the solicitation or incitement to disseminate,
a photograph or other visual recording by a pupil to another pupil

47
76



or to school personnel by means of an electronic act that has or
can be reasonably predicted to have one or more of the e�fects
described in subparagraphs (i) to (iv), inclusive, of paragraph (1). A
photograph or other visual recording, as described above, shall
include the depiction of a nude, semi-nude, or sexually explicit
photograph or other visual recording of a minor where the minor
is identifiable from the photograph, visual recording, or other
electronic act.

(b) For purposes of this clause, “cyber sexual bullying” does not
include a depiction, portrayal, or image that has any serious
literary, artistic, educational, political, or scientific value or that
involves athletic events or school-sanctioned activities.

iii) Notwithstanding subparagraphs (1) and (2) above, an electronic act shall not
constitute pervasive conduct solely on the basis that it has been transmitted on
the Internet or is currently posted on the Internet.

u) A pupil who aids or abets, as defined in Section 31 of the Penal Code, the in�liction or
attempted in�liction of physical injury to another personmay be subject to suspension,
but not expulsion, except that a pupil who has been adjudged by a juvenile court to have
committed, as an aider and abettor, a crime of physical violence in which the victim
su�fered great bodily injury or serious bodily injury shall be subject to discipline
pursuant to subdivision (1) (a)-(b).

v) Possessed, sold, or otherwise furnished any knife or other dangerous object of no
reasonable use to the student unless, in the case of possession of any object of this type,
the student had obtained written permission to possess the item from a certificated
Charter School employee, with the Director or designee’s concurrence.

Non-Discretionary SuspensionO�fenses
Students must be suspended and recommended for expulsion for any of the following acts when
it is determined the pupil:

a) Possessed, sold, or otherwise furnished any firearm, explosive, or other dangerous
object unless, in the case of possession of any object of this type, the student had
obtained written permission to possess the item from a certificated Charter School
employee, with the Executive Director or designee’s concurrence.

b) Brandished a knife at another person.

48
77



c) Unlawfully sold a controlled substance listed in Health and Safety Code Section 11053, et
seq.

d) Committed or attempted to commit a sexual assault or committed a sexual battery as
defined in Penal Code Sections 261, 266c, 286, 287, 288, or 289 or former Section 288a of
the Penal Code or committed a sexual battery as defined in Penal Code Section 243.4.

Expulsion
In the case of expulsion, the Director will recommend to the YCBE of actions to be taken, and
the parent(s) will receive advance written notification of the actions to be taken and procedures
for appeal.

Unless the Director or Superintendent finds that expulsion is inappropriate due to
circumstances or that an alternative means of correction would address the conduct, the
Director, Superintendent, or designee shall recommend a student's expulsion for any of the
following acts:

Discretionary Expellable O�fenses
Students may be recommended for expulsion for any of the following acts when it is determined
the pupil:

a) Caused, attempted to cause, or threatened to cause physical injury to another person.
b) Willfully used force or violence upon the person of another, except self-defense.
c) Unlawfully possessed, used, sold, or otherwise furnished, or was under the in�luence of

any controlled substance, as defined in Health and Safety Code Sections 11053-11058,
alcoholic beverage, or intoxicant of any kind.

d) Unlawfully o�fered, arranged, or negotiated to sell any controlled substance as defined in
Health and Safety Code Sections 11053-11058, alcoholic beverage, or intoxicant of any
kind, and then sold, delivered or otherwise furnished to any person another liquid
substance or material and represented same as a controlled substance, alcoholic
beverage or intoxicant.

e) Committed or attempted to commit robbery or extortion.
f) Caused or attempted to cause damage to school property or private property, including,

but not limited to, electronic files and databases.
g) Stole or attempted to steal school property or private property, which includes, but is not

limited to, electronic files and databases.
h) Possessed or used tobacco or products containing tobacco or nicotine products,

49
78



including but not limited to cigars, cigarettes, miniature cigars, clove cigarettes,
smokeless tobacco, snu�f, chew packets, and betel. �is section does not prohibit the use
of their prescription products by a pupil.

i) Committed an obscene act or engaged in habitual profanity or vulgarity.
j) Unlawfully possessed or unlawfully o�fered, arranged, or negotiated to sell any drug

paraphernalia, as defined in Health and Safety Code Section 11014.5.
k) Knowingly received stolen school property or private property, which includes but is not

limited to, electronic files and databases.
l) Possessed an imitation firearm, i.e., a replica of a firearm that is so substantially similar

in physical properties to an existing firearm as to lead a reasonable person to conclude
that the replica is a firearm.

m) Harassed, threatened, or intimidated a student who is a complaining witness or witness
in a school disciplinary proceeding for the purpose of preventing that student from
being a witness and/or retaliating against that student for being a witness.

n) Unlawfully o�fered, arranged to sell, negotiated to sell, or sold the prescription drug
Soma.

o) Engaged in or attempted to engage in hazing. For the purposes of this subdivision,
“hazing” means a method of initiation or preinitiation into a pupil organization or body,
whether or not the organization or body is o�ficially recognized by an educational
institution, which is likely to cause serious bodily injury or personal degradation or
disgrace resulting in physical or mental harm to a former, current, or prospective pupil.
For purposes of this section, “hazing” does not include athletic events or
school-sanctioned events.

p) Made terroristic threats against school o�ficials and/or school property, which include
but is not limited to, electronic files and databases. For purposes of this section,
“terroristic threat” shall include any statement, whether written or oral, by a person who
willfully threatens to commit a crime which will result in death, great bodily injury to
another person, or property damage in excess of one thousand dollars ($1,000), with the
specific intent that the statement is to be taken as a threat, even if there is no intent of
actually carrying it out, which, on its face and under the circumstances in which it is
made, is so unequivocal, unconditional, immediate, and specific as to convey to the
person threatened, a gravity of purpose and an immediate prospect of execution of the
threat, and thereby causes that person reasonably to be in sustained fear for his or her
own safety or for his or her immediate family’s safety, or for the protection of school

50
79



property, which includes but is not limited to, electronic files and databases, or the
personal property of the person threatened or his or her immediate family.

q) Committed sexual harassment, as defined in Education Code Section 212.5. For the
purposes of this section, the conduct described in Section 212.5 must be considered by a
reasonable person of the same gender as the victim to be su�ficiently severe or pervasive
to have a negative impact upon the individual’s academic performance or to create an
intimidating, hostile, or o�fensive educational environment.�is section shall apply to
pupils in any of grades 4 to 12, inclusive.

r) Caused, attempted to cause, threatened to cause or participated in an act of hate
violence, as defined in subdivision (e) of Section 233 of the Education Code. �is section
shall apply to pupils in any of grades 4 to 12, inclusive.

s) Intentionally harassed, threatened or intimidated school personnel or volunteers and/or
a student or group of students to the extent of having the actual and reasonably expected
e�fect of materially disrupting classwork, creating substantial disorder and invading the
rights of either school personnel or volunteers and/or student(s) by creating an
intimidating or hostile educational environment.�is section shall apply to pupils in any
of grades 4 to 12, inclusive.

t) Engaged in an act of bullying, including, but not limited to, bullying committed by
means of an electronic act.

i) “Bullying” means any severe or pervasive physical or verbal act or conduct,
including communications made in writing or by means of an electronic act, and
including one or more acts committed by a student or group of students which
would be deemed hate violence or harassment, threats, or intimidation, which
are directed toward one or more students that has or can be reasonably predicted
to have the e�fect of one or more of the following:

1) Placing a reasonable student (defined as a student, including, but is not
limited to, a student with exceptional needs, who exercises average care,
skill, and judgment in conduct for a person of his or her age, or for a
person of his or her age with exceptional needs) or students in fear of
harm to that student’s or those students’ person or property.

2) Causing a reasonable student to experience a substantially detrimental
e�fect on their physical or mental health.

3) Causing a reasonable student to experience substantial interference with
his or her academic performance.

51
80



4) Causing a reasonable student to experience substantial interference with
their ability to participate in or benefit from the services, activities, or
privileges provided by the Charter School.

ii) “Electronic Act” means the creation or transmission originated on or o�f the
school site, by means of an electronic device, including, but not limited to, a
telephone, wireless telephone, or other wireless communication device,
computer, or pager, of a communication, including, but not limited to, any of the
following:

1) Amessage, text, sound, video, or image.
2) A post on a social network InternetWeb site including, but not limited to:

(a) Posting to or creating a burn page. A “burn page” means an
InternetWeb site created for the purpose of having one or more of
the e�fects as listed in subparagraph (1) above.

(b) Creating a credible impersonation of another actual pupil for the
purpose of having one or more of the e�fects listed in
subparagraph (1) above. “Credible impersonation” means to
knowingly and without consent impersonate a pupil for the
purpose of bullying the pupil and such that another pupil would
reasonably believe, or has reasonably believed, that the pupil was
or is the pupil who was impersonated.

(c) Creating a false profile for the purpose of having one or more of
the e�fects listed in subparagraph (1) above. “False profile” means a
profile of a fictitious pupil or a profile using the likeness or
attributes of an actual pupil other than the pupil who created the
false profile.

3) An act of cyber sexual bullying.
(a) For purposes of this clause, “cyber sexual bullying” means the

dissemination of, or the solicitation or incitement to disseminate,
a photograph or other visual recording by a pupil to another pupil
or to school personnel by means of an electronic act that has or
can be reasonably predicted to have one or more of the e�fects
described in subparagraphs (i) to (iv), inclusive, of paragraph (1). A
photograph or other visual recording, as described above, shall
include the depiction of a nude, semi-nude, or sexually explicit

52
81



photograph or other visual recording of a minor where the minor
is identifiable from the photograph, visual recording, or other
electronic act.

(b) For purposes of this clause, “cyber sexual bullying” does not
include a depiction, portrayal, or image that has any serious
literary, artistic, educational, political, or scientific value or that
involves athletic events or school-sanctioned activities.

iii) Notwithstanding subparagraphs (1) and (2) above, an electronic act shall not
constitute pervasive conduct solely on the basis that it has been transmitted on
the Internet or is currently posted on the Internet.

u) A pupil who aids or abets, as defined in Section 31 of the Penal Code, the in�liction or
attempted in�liction of physical injury to another personmay be subject to suspension,
but not expulsion, except that a pupil who has been adjudged by a juvenile court to have
committed, as an aider and abettor, a crime of physical violence in which the victim
su�fered great bodily injury or serious bodily injury shall be subject to discipline
pursuant to subdivision (3)(a)-(b).

v) Possessed, sold, or otherwise furnished any knife unless, in the case of possession of any
object of this type, the student had obtained written permission to possess the item
from a certificated school employee, with the Director or designee’s concurrence.

Non-Discretionary Expellable O�fenses
Students must be recommended for expulsion for any of the following acts when it is
determined pursuant to the procedures below that the pupil:

a) Possessed, sold, or otherwise furnished any firearm, explosive, or other dangerous
object unless, in the case of possession of any object of this type, the student had
obtained written permission to possess the item from a certificated school employee,
with the Director or designee’s concurrence.

b) Brandished a knife at another person.
c) Unlawfully sold a controlled substance listed in Health and Safety Code Section 11053, et

seq.
d) Committed or attempted to commit a sexual assault or committed a sexual battery as

defined in Penal Code Sections 261, 266c, 286, 287, 288, or 289 or former Section 288a of
the Penal Code or committed a sexual battery as defined in Penal Code Section 243.4.

If the Administrative Panel and/or Board of Education determines that a student has brought a

53
82



firearm or destructive device (defined in Section 921 of Title 18 of the United States Code) onto
campus or has possessed a firearm or dangerous device on campus, the student shall be expelled
for one year, pursuant to the Federal Gun Free Schools Act of 1994. In such instances, the pupil
shall receive due process rights of notice and a hearing as required in this policy.

YCCPCS will use the following definitions:
● �e term “knife” means (A) any dirk, dagger, or other weapon with a fixed, sharpened

blade fitted primarily for stabbing; (B) a weapon with a blade fitted primarily for
stabbing; (C) a weapon with a blade longer than 3½ inches; (D) a folding knife with a
blade that locks into place; or (E) a razor with an unguarded blade.

● �e term “firearm” means (A) any weapon (including a starter gun) that will or is
designed to or may readily be converted to expel a projectile by the action of an explosive;
(B) the frame or receiver of any such weapon; (C) any firearmmu��ler or firearm silencer;
or (D) any destructive device. Such a term does not include an antique firearm.

● �e term “destructive device” means (A) any explosive, incendiary, or poison gas,
including but not limited to: (i) bomb, (ii) grenade, (iii) rocket having a propellant charge
of more than four ounces, (iv) missile having an explosive or incendiary charge of more
than one-quarter ounce, (v) mine, or (vi) device similar to any of the devices described in
the preceding clauses.

Corporal Punishment
Corporal punishment shall not be used as a disciplinary measure against any student. Corporal
punishment includes the willful in�liction of or willfully causing the in�liction of physical pain
on a student. Corporal punishment does not include an employee's use of force that is
reasonable and necessary to protect the employee, students, sta�f, or other persons or to prevent
damage to school property.

Element XI: CA State Teacher Retirement System
YCCPCS employees participate in STRS, PERS, or Social Security based on individual eligibility.
�e YCOEmonitors enrollment in these programs.

54
83



Element XII: Dispute Resolution Procedures
YCCPCS follows all YCOE policies when handling disputes.�e County Superintendent
recognizes that the YCOE is responsible for ensuring compliance with applicable state and
federal laws and regulations governing educational programs and encourages the early,
informal resolution of complaints whenever possible and appropriate.�e County
Superintendent shall adopt the uniform system of complaint (UCP) processes to resolve
complaints that cannot be resolved through an informal process.

�e County Superintendent recognizes that alternative dispute resolution (ADR) can,
depending on the nature of the allegations, o�fer a process to resolve the complaint that is
agreeable to all parties.

YCOE shall protect all complainants from retaliation. In investigating complaints, the parties'
confidentiality shall be protected as law requires. For any complaint alleging retaliation or
unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying), the
County Superintendent or designee shall keep the identity of the complainant and the subject of
the complaint, if they are di�ferent from the complainant, confidential when appropriate and if
the integrity of the complaint process is maintained.When an allegation that is not subject to
the UCP is included in a UCP complaint, the YCOE shall refer the non-UCP allegation to the
appropriate sta�f or agency and shall investigate and, if appropriate, resolve the UCP-related
allegation(s) through the YCOE’s UCP.

Element XIII: Admission Requirements
Enrollment Interest Forms are collected throughout the year. Each form is date and time stamped
when submitted. �is form becomes a part of the o�ficial lottery process if a lottery needs to be
conducted. To best support the student population served, the school may support the parent
or guardian of a student or a student of legal age with making a request of a current or prior
school to release transcripts or other relevant records to YCCPCS to determine appropriate
course placement and support.

Public RandomDrawing Process
�e school will count Interest Forms to determine whether any grade level received more interest
than availability. YCCPCS strives to admit all pupils wishing to enroll, so when there are more
openings than Interest Forms, all students are enrolled. A waitlist is established by the date and

55
84



time the Interest Form is received for any grade levels or programs filled a�ter that and for the
balance of the academic year.

YCCPCS adheres to the requirements related to admission preferences as set forth in Education
Code Section 47605(e)(2)(B)(i)-(iv). If the YCCPCS receives a greater number of Interest Forms
than there are spaces for students in a grade level, impacted grade level admission will be
determined through a public random drawing process, without regard to ethnicity, national
origin, gender, disability, achievement level, or according to the place of residence of the pupil
or parents, except as guided by state law concerning county operated charter schools.

As needed, a random public drawing will be held before the start of school and will occur in a
public place on the school campus that can accommodate all interested educational partners.
An uninterested third party will run the public random drawing. Parents do not have to be
present at the drawing to accept their spot, should their child’s name be drawn. Parents whose
students are admitted to the drawing will be notified within a week of the drawing, either in
writing or by phone. Families are encouraged to call the school o�fice to inquire about their
child’s enrollment status. Currently, enrolled students are exempt from the public random
drawing process.
Admission preferences in the case of a public random drawing shall be granted to

1. siblings of currently enrolled students
2. residents of Yuba and Sutter Counties
3. all other applicants

In accordance with Education Code Section 47605(c)(5)(H), these preferences are not likely to
negatively impact the racial, ethnic, and unduplicated balance YCCPCS strives to re�lect.

A�ter the public random drawing, all students not granted admission due to capacity shall be
allowed to put their name on a waitlist according to their draw in the public random drawing.
�is waitlist will allow students to enroll in the case of an opening during the school year. A wait
list will never carry over to the following school year.

Public random drawing rules, deadlines, dates, and times will be communicated on the
YCCPCS’s website. Public notice for the date and time of the random drawing will also be posted
once the application deadline has passed.�e YCCPCS will inform all parties having submitted
an Interest Form and all other interested parties of the rules to be followed during the public
random drawing process. Communication will be delivered via mail or email at least two weeks
before the drawing date.

56
85



When grade-level capacity is reached a�ter the start of school, families interested in enrollment
will be added to the grade-level waitlist on the date and time order requests are received.�e
families will be placed at the end of any preexisting public random drawing waitlist defined
above.

Enrollment Process
At enrollment, parents/guardians of new students will :

● Attend an orientation and complete enrollment forms, including emergency
information cards.

● Provide records, including immunization records, as required by public schools.
○ Students enrolling as foster/homeless youth may enroll immediately without

required documentation andmust still provide required documentation within a
reasonable amount of time.

Based on a review of transcripts, high school students are assigned a grade level in the student
information system that correlates with the total credits earned.

Students are enrolled in YCCPCS vocational and other site-based courses based on their desire
to learn a particular set of skills.

No individual with exceptional needs, as defined in Education Code Section 56026, may
participate in an independent study program unless an Individualized Education Program (IEP)
specifically provides for that participation (EC51745(c)).

Written Agreement for Independent Study
A�ter enrollment, each student and their parent/guardian will complete and sign aMaster
Agreement indicating their understanding of the partnership with the school, its philosophy,
services, requirements, and expected student learning outcomes. Continued enrollment will
depend on all partners meeting the expectations and conditions of the Master Agreement.
Either member of the partnership may withdraw from theMaster Agreement as appropriate or
necessary.

Students are required to complete the courses listed on the Master Agreement for Independent
Study each semester as they are outlined in the YCCPCS course descriptions. All course

57
86



objectives are consistent with the established guidelines. Assignment andWork-Record Forms
include additional descriptions of the major objectives and activities of the course of study
covered by the agreement and the methods for evaluating student work. �e purpose of the
master agreement is to enable the student to successfully reach the objectives and complete the
assignments identified in the assignment and work-record forms that will be part of this
agreement.

As outlined in the policy, up to two weeks may elapse between the date an assignment is made
by the teacher and the date it is due unless the period is o�ficially extended. �e student agrees
to meet with or report to the teacher regularly in accordance with the frequency, date, time, and
location specified in the course contract or the assignment and work record.

�eMaster Agreement is aligned with the California Education Code and local policy and shall
serve as the YCCPCS procedure for independent study. It may be amended occasionally without
the need to amend the charter so long as the amendments comply with legal requirements
(Appendix).

Element XIV: Public School Attendance Alternatives
Attendance at YCCPCS is entirely voluntary for the students who enroll. District of residence
public schools remain an option for all students who choose not to attend this charter school.
�e parent/guardian of each pupil shall be informed that the pupil has no right to admission to a
particular school or any local educational agency because of enrollment in YCCPCS, except to
the extent that the individual local educational agency extends such a right.

Element XV: Post-Employment Rights of Employees
All employees of YCOE will remain employees of the YCOE Superintendent and bound by the
collective bargaining agreements between YCCEA, the YCOE Superintendent, and the YCOE
CTA. No rights or privileges are hereby waived.

Element XVI: Closure Procedures
If YCCPCS ceases operation, the school's assets and liabilities will be disposed of by YCOE in
accordance with the asset disposition provisions of YCOE rules and regulations.

58
87



If it is feasible to do so while still maintaining a viable and appropriate educational program,
the charter school will close at the end of an academic year. YCCPCS and the YCOE will work
together to avoid mid-year school closures.

Documentation andNotification of Closure Action
Closure of YCCPCS will be documented by o�ficial action of the YCBE in accordance with
applicable law.�e action will identify the reason for closure, an entity and person or persons
responsible for closure-related activities (including notifications), and the e�fective date of the
closure.

Notification to Parents and Students
YCCPCS students will be notified as soon as possible when school closure appears imminent.
�e notification will include assistance in transferring the student to another appropriate school
and a process for transferring all student records.

Notification to the California Department of Education, SELPA, and State Board of Education
YCCPCS and the YCOE will send a notification of school closure to the Charter School Division
at the CA Department of Education, the State Board of Education, and the SELPA. �is notice
will include the charter school name, CDS Code, name(s) of and contact information for the
person(s) to whom reasonable inquiries may be made regarding the closure; the date of the
closure action, the pupils’ school districts of residence, as applicable; and how
parents/guardians may obtain copies of pupil records, including specific information on
completed courses and credits that meet graduation requirements, and information to assist
parents and students in locating suitable alternative programs.

YCCPCS will develop a list of pupils in each grade level and the classes they have completed,
together with information on the pupils’ districts of residence, which they will provide to the
entity responsible for closure-related activities.

Notification to ReceivingDistricts
YCCPCS will notify any school district responsible for providing education services to former
students so the receiving district(s) is/are prepared to assist in facilitating student transfers.

59
88



Records
In the event of closure, all state assessment results, pupil, special education, and personnel
records will be transferred to andmaintained by the YCOE in accordance with applicable law.
Parents/students will be provided with a packet of student information that may include the
closure notice, grade reports, discipline records, immunization records, completed courses and
credits that meet graduation requirements and college entrance requirements, etc., that will
facilitate transfer to another school.

All student record transfers will comply with the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act
(“FERPA”) 20 U.S.C. § 1232g.

Financial Close-Out
�e YCOEwill commence an independent audit as soon as practicable, or at least within 60 days
a�ter the school's closure, which may coincide with the school's regular required annual audit.
�e purpose of the audit is to determine the school's net assets or net liabilities.�e assessment
will include an accounting of all the school's assets, including cash and accounts receivable and
an inventory of property, equipment, and supplies, and an accounting of the school's liabilities,
including any accounts receivable, which may include reduction in apportionments because of
audit findings or other investigations, loans and unpaid sta�f compensation.�e audit will also
assess the disposition of any restricted funds received or due to the school.�e cost of the audit
may be considered YCCPCS' liability.

YCCPCS will complete and file any annual reports required pursuant to Education Code section
47604.33.�ese reports will be submitted as soon as possible a�ter the closure action but by the
required deadline for reporting for the fiscal year.

Dissolution of Assets
Upon completion of the closeout audit, the school administration and the Superintendent will
develop a plan for repaying any liabilities in conformity with the Suggested Process for Charter
School Closures (11/19/01), published by the California Department of Education.

Any net assets remaining a�ter all debts and liabilities of YCCPCS (i) have been paid to the extent
of the school corporation’s assets or (ii) have been adequately provided for shall be returned to
YCOE.

60
89



Required Supplemental Criteria: Financial/
Administrative Plan Financial Budget

�e financial budget is maintained by and in collaboration with the YCOE Fiscal Services
Department.

Required Supplemental Criteria: Community Impact
YCCPCS is a locally funded charter with an unduplicated student count of at least 70 percent of
the school’s total enrollment of high-risk student groups. YCCPCS serves students who have not
been successful in the traditional school setting via a Personalized Learning Program. As a
personalized K-12 Independent Study program serving high-risk student groups, the impact on
the local schools is minimal and does not duplicate programs o�fered by the local districts.

61
90



Material Revision Appendix

1. Independent StudyMaster Agreement
2. Dra�t of Charter Advisory Council Bylaws

62
91



92



 

 
Yuba County Superintendent of Schools 

 
2024-2025 

Annual Local Control Accountability Support Plan

93



2  

LCAP Support: Completing the review of LCAPs submitted by school districts [EC Section 52070]. 

 

 
Goal One: Approve all LCAPs. 

 

 

Metric Action 

All districts attend 
technical assistance 
meetings. 

• Hold initial technical assistance meetings with district leaders by April 15, 2025. 
• Provide drop-in and scheduled technical assistance sessions and work group meetings for district 

leaders to attend and ask questions regarding LCAP template, components, and requirements. 
• Review LCAP drafts and provide on-going feedback between April – June, 2025. 

Survey district leaders 
to measure level of 
effectiveness with 
support and 
information 

• Provide LCAP items/updates for Educational Services meetings, and other school/district/county leader 
meetings. 

• Provide professional learning opportunities focused on state and local indicators, new LCAP cycle, 
LCAP template changes, LCAP template components (e.g., Goal Analysis, etc.). 

All LCAPs approved 
and uploaded to the 
county website by 
September 15, 2024. 

• Review board approved LCAPs in July and August and work with district leaders to ensure that all 
LCAPs are approvable by the county superintendent. 

EC Section 52070, http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=52070.&lawCode=EDC 

94

http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=52070.&lawCode=EDC


3  

Technical Assistance: Providing technical assistance to school districts pursuant to subdivisions (a) and (b) of Ed Code 52071. 

1. When the County Superintendent does not approve a LCAP. 

2. When a district requests support. 

Goal Two: Utilize the cycle of continuous improvement to provide technical assistance to schools and 
districts based on need. Technical assistance is provided to districts who are identified as needing 
assistance as well as those that volunteer for assistance. 

 

 

Metric Action 

Review the Greatest 
Progress, Greatest 
Needs and Performance 
Gaps sections of LCAPs. 

• Collaborate with district leaders and teams to review the current year Dashboard data to 
determine Greatest Progress, Greatest Needs and Performance Gaps. 

• Curriculum & Instruction Director will compile district Dashboard data. The Yuba County System 
of Support team will analyze the data. 

• Provide targeted professional development on Dashboard analysis to district teams. 
Review of district local 
data systems analysis 

• Collaborate with district leaders and teams to review and analyze local data. 
• Provide district leaders with support on conducting and administering a Self-Assessment to 

identify systems level strengths and weaknesses. 
Completion of root cause 
analysis tool 
 
Alignment of LCAP goals 
to root cause analysis 
 
Completion of the 
identification of a problem 
of practice 

• Introduce Improvement Science to district leaders and technical assistance teams to determine 
root causes. 

• Collaborate with district leaders and teams to identify causes using the Improvement Science tools 
(e.g., Fishbone Diagram, the 5-Whys Protocol, etc.) 

• Collaborate with district leaders and teams to draft LCAP goals that align with root causes, 
aim statements and research-based change ideas. 

EC Section 52071, http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=52071.&lawCode=EDC 

95

http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=52071.&lawCode=EDC


4  

Please provide a description of the actions the school district(s) will take independent of the COE to improve student outcomes. 

 
 

Actions Source of Funding 

Collaborate with district leaders and teams to identify aim statements, 
and primary and secondary drivers to address identified root causes. 
 
Provide district leaders and teams with tools to identify vetted change 
ideas, evidence-based practices and interventions and create actions 
and services in the LCAP that address root causes. 
 
Provide professional development on reframing the discussion that lead to 
decisions on the Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for 
Unduplicated Pupils section of the LCAP. 
 
Provide customized support in the area(s) that the district has identified as 
a need, based on root cause analysis. 
 
Survey and meet regularly with district leaders and teams to share 
successes and challenges with implementation, review data and 
determine next steps. 

DA funds generated by district eligibility 

EC Section 52071, http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=52071.&lawCode=EDC 

 
Actions the school district(s) will take independent of the COE 

 

 
Not applicable. 

Providing Differentiated Assistance: Providing technical assistance to school districts pursuant to subdivision (c) of EC Section 
52071. 

96

http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=52071.&lawCode=EDC


5  

Optional Prompt for COEs with districts who meet criteria: For districts who meet eligibility criteria under Ed Code 52072 (b)(1), 
describe how the COE is prioritizing and adjusting their support and continuous improvement actions in the areas of intensity and 
frequency: 

● When a district fails to improve student achievement across more than one state priority for three or more student 
groups for three out of four consecutive years or more. 

For COEs who have Local Educational Agencies who meet the eligibility criteria under Ed Code 52072(b)(1) 
 

 

Prompt Narrative  

Optional Prompt for 
COEs with districts 
who meet criteria 
[EC Section 52072 
(b)(1)] 

• Collaborate with California Collaborative for Educational Excellence (CCEE) to provide the necessary 
support and continuous improvement actions, identify problems of practice, change ideas and 
implement cycles of plan, do, study, act (PDSA). 

• Collaborate with district leaders and teams to identify aim statements, and primary and secondary 
drivers to address identified root causes. 

• Provide district leaders and teams with tools to identify vetted evidence-based practices, 
interventions, change ideas and create actions and services in the LCAP that address root causes. 

• Provide professional development on reframing the discussion that lead to LCAP actions to address the 
change in student outcomes for the identified student groups. 

• Provide customized support in the area(s) that the district has identified as a need, based on root cause 
analysis. 

Survey and meet regularly with district leaders and teams to share successes and challenges with 
implementation, review data and determine next steps. 

EC Section 52072(b)(1), https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=52072&lawCode=EDC 

97



6  

Other Support: Providing any other support to school districts and schools within the county in implementing the provisions of EC 
Sections 52059.5-52077. 

Goal Three: Provide support for continuous improvement to all districts. 
 

 

Metric Action 

Attendance at 
professional 
development and work 
group opportunities 

• Yuba County System of Support, Education Services and Special Education Local Plan Area (SELPA) 
staff provide professional development, supports and interventions related to student outcomes 
around academic, behavioral and social-emotional areas. 

• Yuba County System of Support, Educational Services and SELPA staff collaborate to provide 
integrated professional development opportunities. 

• Provide evaluations/surveys following each professional development opportunity to receive feedback 
for improvement of services 

Attendance at Yuba 
County Professional 
Learning Network 
opportunities 

• Provide opportunities for district leaders and SELPA staff to come together to share best practices and 
learn from each other. 

• District LCAP Goal 
Analyses 

• District progress on 
CA Dashboard 

• Yuba County System of Support team will review district LCAP Goal Analyses. 
• Yuba County System of Support team will review district progress on the CA Dashboard. 
• Yuba County System of Support team will connect with districts on a regular basis for ongoing 

feedback and input. 
  

EC Sections 52059.5–52077, 
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?division=4.&chapter=6.1.&part=28.&lawCode=EDC&title=2.&article=4. 
5. 

98



7  

The Yuba County Superintendent of Schools will collaborate with the California Collaborative for Educational Excellence (CCEE), the 
CDE, other county superintendents, Geographic Lead Agencies (Geo Leads), as well as System of Support (SOS) Lead Agencies to 
support school districts within the county in the following ways: 

Collaboration 
 

 

Actions CCEE CDE County 
Superintendents 

Geo Leads SOS Leads 

County Superintendent participates in regular 
County Supts.meetings and scheduled CCEE 
Advisory Board meetings. 

Y Y Y   

Deputy Superintendent of Educational 
Services and Curriculum & Instruction 
Director attend Capitol Service Region 
meetings. 

Y Y Y Y  

Deputy Superintendent of Educational 
Services and Curriculum & Instruction 
Director attend Curriculum and Instruction 
Steering Committee meetings. 

Y Y    

Deputy Superintendent of Educational 
Services and Curriculum & Instruction 
Director attend Student Programs and 
Services Steering Committee meetings 

Y Y    

Deputy Superintendent of Educational 
Services and Curriculum & Instruction 
Director attend Capitol Central Foothill Area 
Consortium meetings and serves on the 
Advisory Committee (Geographic Lead) 

   Y Y 

Curriculum & Instruction Director attend state 
and federal program director meetings 

 Y    

Deputy Superintendent of Educational 
Services and Curriculum & Instruction 
Director attend Capitol Central Foothill Area 
Consortium meetings and state networking 
and initiatives meetings 

Y Y  Y Y 

99



8  

Curriculum & Instruction Director attends 
Math & Science state networking meetings 

 Y   Y 

Curriculum & Instruction Director attends ELA 
state networking meetings and CA Rural Arts 
Network meetings 

Y Y   Y 

Social Emotional Learning Coordinator 
attends state SEL COE leads meetings 

 Y   Y 

UPK Coordinator attends state UPK 
networking meetings 

 Y   Y 

SELPA Director attends state SELPA 
meetings 

Y Y    

Chief Business Officer attends BASC 
meetings 

 Y Y   

Instructions: Insert “Y” to indicate a collaborator or use “-“ to signify N/A. 

100



9  

Not Applicable until the 2025–2026 LCAP Cycle per EC Section 52064.3 

Please provide a description of the estimated costs related to the actions outlined in the plan above. 

Goal Four: Supports for Special Education 
 

 
Budget - COE 

 

 

2024-25 Goal 2024-25 Estimated Costs 

Goals 1, 2 & 3 Yuba County System of Support staff salaries and benefits to provide plan 
actions & services to support district LCAP development and improve student outcomes 
county wide 

$300,000 

Goals 1,2 & 3, Actions & Services to provide customized support in the area(s) that the 
district has identified as a need, based on root cause analysis 

$200,000 

Goal 3, Included services with Goal 2 Included with Goal 2 

Goal 4 (not applicable until the 2025-2026 LCAP Cycle per EC Section 52064.3) [N/A] 

Total Estimated Cost $500,000 

 

101


	1 - 7-10-24 Agenda Cover
	2 - 7-10-24 Agenda
	3 - 6-20-24 Minutes
	4 - Kingsley Bogard Donation signed
	5 - Kevin Watts Proclamation
	6 - Williams Quarter 4 - 6.26.24
	7 - Local Agency Biennial Report
	8 - BB 9270 Conflict of Interest
	9 - E 9270 Conflict of Interest
	10 - Superintendent Salary Schedule 2024-2025 - PROPOSED 5.10.24
	11 - YCCPCS - Staff Report final
	12 - FINAL CLEAN COPY YCCPCS Material Revision 4.15.24.docx (1)
	13 - Art Music in Schools Prop 28 AnnualReport 2024
	14 - Yuba COE Annual LCAP Support Plan FINAL.2024-25
	Goal One: Approve all LCAPs.
	Goal Two: Utilize the cycle of continuous improvement to provide technical assistance to schools and districts based on need. Technical assistance is provided to districts who are identified as needing assistance as well as those that volunteer for as...
	Actions the school district(s) will take independent of the COE
	For COEs who have Local Educational Agencies who meet the eligibility criteria under Ed Code 52072(b)(1)

	Goal Three: Provide support for continuous improvement to all districts.
	Collaboration




